
 
A meeting of the OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY PANEL (SERVICE 
SUPPORT) will be held in the COUNCIL CHAMBER, PATHFINDER 
HOUSE, ST MARY'S STREET, HUNTINGDON, PE29 3TN on 
TUESDAY, 10 JUNE 2008 at 7:30 PM and you are requested to attend 
for the transaction of the following business:- 

 
 
PLEASE NOTE THERE WILL BE A BRIEFING FOR ALL MEMBERS OF THE PANEL 

AT 7PM IN MEETING ROOM 1 
 
 

 Contact 
(01480) 

 
 APOLOGIES   

 

 

1. MINUTES  (Pages 1 - 2) 
 

 

 To approve as a correct record the Minutes of the meeting of the 
Panel held on 16th May 2008. 
 

Mrs C Bulman 
388234 

2. MEMBERS' INTERESTS   
 

 

 To receive from Members declarations as to personal and/or 
prejudicial interest and the nature of those interests in relation to any 
Agenda Item. Please see Notes 1 and 2 overleaf. 
 

 

3. LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 2000: FORWARD PLAN  (Pages 3 - 
10) 

 

 

 In accordance with the agreed procedure, Members are invited to 
note the Plan and comment as appropriate on the Items contained 
therein. A copy of the current Forward Plan is attached. 
 

Mrs C Bulman 
388234 

4. LOCAL DEVELOPMENT FRAMEWORK: THE CORE STRATEGY 
SUBMISSION DOCUMENT  (Pages 11 - 390) 

 

 

 To consider the submission document for the Core Strategy prior to 
its consideration by the Cabinet. 
 
(A copy of Huntingdonshire District Council / Core Strategy – 
Submission Version – Volume One has been circulated separately 
with the agenda. Please retain for future meetings). 
 

S Ingram 
388400 

5. CYCLING  (Pages 391 - 396) 
 

 

 To consider a report by the Head of Planning Services detailing the 
progress made in developing a revised Action Plan for Safe Cycling 
Routes. 
 
 
 

S Bell 
388387 



 
6. PARKING FOR HEAVY GOODS VEHICLES  (Pages 397 - 406) 
 

 

 To consider the report of the Working Group appointed by the Panel. 
 

Mrs C Bulman 
388234 

7. MONITORING OF SECTION 106 AGREEMENTS (PLANNING 
OBLIGATIONS)  (Pages 407 - 422) 

 

 

 To consider the quarterly monitoring report outlining the progress in 
the expenditure of benefits received from the Section 106 
Agreements. 
 

R Fuller 
388463 

8. PERFORMANCE MONITORING  (Pages 423 - 430) 
 

 

 To consider a report by the Head of Policy and Strategic Services 
outlining performance management information on “Growing 
Success” – the Council’s Corporate Plan. 
 

H Thackray 
388035 

9. WORKPLAN STUDIES  (Pages 431 - 438) 
 

 

 To consider, with the aid of a report by the Head of Administration, 
the programme of studies. 
 

Mrs C Bulman 
388234 

10. OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY PANEL (SERVICE SUPPORT)  
(Pages 439 - 446) 

 

 

 To consider a report by the Head of Administration on decisions 
taken by the Panel. 
 

Mrs C Bulman 
388234 

11. SCRUTINY  (Pages 447 - 456) 
 

 

 To scrutinise decisions since the last meeting. A copy of the relevant 
Decision Digests are attached. 
 

 

   
 Dated this 5 day of June 2008  
 

 

 

 Chief Executive 
 
 

 

  
 
Notes 
 
1.  A personal interest exists where a decision on a matter would affect to a greater extent 

than other people in the District – 
 

(a) the well-being, financial position, employment or business of the Councillor, their 
family or any person with whom they had a close association; 

 
 (b) a body employing those persons, any firm in which they are a partner and any 

company of which they are directors; 
 



 
 (c) any corporate body in which those persons have a beneficial interest in a class of 

securities exceeding the nominal value of £25,000; or 
 
 (d) the Councillor’s registerable financial and other interests. 
 
2. A personal interest becomes a prejudicial interest where a member of the public (who has 

knowledge of the circumstances) would reasonably regard the Member’s personal 
interest as being so significant that it is likely to prejudice the Councillor’s judgement of 
the public interest. 

 

Please contact Mrs Claire Bulman, Democratic Services Officer, Tel No 01480 388234/e-
mail:  Claire.Bulman@huntsdc.gov.uk  if you have a general query on any Agenda Item, 
wish to tender your apologies for absence from the meeting, or would like information 
on any decision taken by the Panel. 

Specific enquiries with regard to items on the Agenda should be directed towards the 
Contact Officer. 

Members of the public are welcome to attend this meeting as observers except during 
consideration of confidential or exempt items of business. 

 
 

Agenda and enclosures can be viewed on the District Council’s website – 
www.huntingdonshire.gov.uk (under Councils and Democracy). 

 
 

If you would like a translation of Agenda/Minutes/Reports 
or would like a large text version or an audio version  
please contact the Democratic Services Manager and  

we will try to accommodate your needs. 
 
 

Emergency Procedure 

In the event of the fire alarm being sounded and on the instruction of the Meeting 
Administrator, all attendees are requested to vacate the building via the closest emergency 
exit and to make their way to the car park adjacent to the Methodist Church on the High 
Street (opposite Prima's Italian Restaurant). 

 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



HUNTINGDONSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 
 
 MINUTES of the meeting of the OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY PANEL 

(SERVICE SUPPORT) held in the Council Chamber, Pathfinder 
House, St Mary's Street, Huntingdon, PE29 3TN on Wednesday, 14 
May 2008. 

   
 PRESENT: Councillors M G Baker, J T Bell, J W Davies, 

P J Downes, A N Gilbert, P M D Godfrey,  
J A Gray D Harty, Ms S Kemp, L W McGuire, 
M F Newman, R G Tuplin and R J West 

   
 APOLOGIES: Apologies for absence from the meeting were 

submitted on behalf of Councillors K M Baker 
and P H Dakers. 

   
 
 

1. ELECTION OF CHAIRMAN   
 

 RESOLVED 
 

that Councillor J A Gray be elected Chairman of the Panel for 
the ensuing Municipal Year. 

 
Councillor J A Gray in the Chair. 
 
 

2. MINUTES   
 

 The Minutes of the meeting of the Panel held on 8th April 2008 were 
approved as a correct record and signed by the Chairman. 
 
 

3. MEMBERS INTERESTS   
 

 No declarations were received. 
 
 

4. APPOINTMENT OF VICE-CHAIRMAN   
 

 RESOLVED 
 

that Councillor P M D Godfrey be elected Vice-Chairman of 
the Panel for the ensuing Municipal Year. 

 
 

5. CORPORATE PLAN WORKING GROUP   
 

 RESOLVED 
 
 

that Councillors M G Baker, J A Gray and R G Tuplin be 
appointed to serve on the Corporate Plan Working Group for 
the ensuing Municipal Year. 

Agenda Item 1

1



6. LAA JOINT ACCOUNTABILITY COMMITTEE   
 

 RESOLVED 
 

a) that Councillor J A Gray be appointed to serve on the LAA 
Joint Accountability Committee; and 

 
b) that the Head of Administration be authorised, in consultation 

with the Chairman of the Panel, to appoint a Member to attend 
the Committee in the latter’s absence 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Chairman 
 
 

2



 

 
 

FORWARD PLAN OF KEY DECISIONS 

Prepared by Councillor I C Bates  
Date of Publication: 16 May 2008 
For Period: 1st June 2008 to 30th September 2008 
 

Membership of the Cabinet is as follows:- 
 

Councillor I C Bates  - Leader of the Council 4 Church End 
Hilton 
Huntingdon   PE28 9NJ 
 

Tel:  01480 830250          E-mail:  Ian.Bates@huntsdc.gov.uk 

Councillor L M Simpson  - Deputy Leader of the Council and  
  Executive Councillor for Headquarters and 
  Information Technology 

45 Devoke Close 
Stukeley Meadows 
Huntingdon 
Cambs     PE29 6XE 
 

Tel:  01480 388946        E-mail:  Mike.Simpson@huntsdc.gov.uk 

Councillor P L E Bucknell - Executive Councillor for Planning Strategy, 
  Environment and Transport 

Compass House 
Pathfinder Way 
Warboys 
PE28 2RD 
 

Tel:  01487 824222      E-mail:  Peter.Bucknell@huntsdc.gov.uk 

Councillor D B Dew - Executive Councillor for Leisure Centres 4 Weir Road 
Hemingford Grey 
Huntingdon  
PE28 9EH 
 

Tel:  01480 469814        E-mail:  Douglas.Dew@huntsdc.gov.uk  

Councillor C E Hyams  - Executive Councillor for Operations, Parks and 
  Countryside 

22 Bluegate 
Godmanchester 
Huntingdon 
Cambs PE29 2EZ 
 

Tel:  01480 388968         E-mail:  Colin.Hyams@huntsdc.gov.uk  

Councillor A Hansard - Executive Councillor for Resources and Policy 78 Potton Road 
Eynesbury 
St Neots 
PE19 2NN 
 

Tel:  01480 388942      E-mail:  Andrew.Hansard@huntsdc.gov.uk 

A
g
e
n
d

a
 Ite

m
 3

3



Councillor Mrs D C Reynolds - Executive Councillor for Housing and Health  17 Virginia Way 
St Ives 
PE27 6SQ 
 

Tel:  01480 388935   E-mail:  Deborah.Reynolds@huntsdc.gov.uk 

Councillor T V Rogers   - Executive Councillor for Finance Honeysuckle Cottage 
34 Meadow Lane 
Earith 
Huntingdon     PE28 3QE 
 

Tel:  01487 840477          E-mail:  Terence.Rogers@huntsdc.gov.uk 
 

Any person who wishes to make representations to the decision maker about a decision which is to be made may do so by contacting Mrs Helen Taylor, Senior Democratic Services Officer on 
01480 388008 or E-mail:   Helen.Taylor@huntsdc.gov.uk  not less than 14 days prior to the date when the decision is to be made. 
 

The documents available may be obtained by contacting the relevant officer shown in this plan who will be responsible for preparing the final report to be submitted to the decision maker on the 
matter in relation to which the decision is to be made.  Similarly any enquiries as to the subject or matter to be tabled for decision or on the availability of supporting information or documentation 
should be directed to the relevant officer. 
 

Roy Reeves 
Head of Administration 
 

Notes:- (i) Additions/significant changes from the previous Forward are annotated *** 
 (ii) For information about how representations about the above decisions may be made please see the Council’s Petitions Procedure at 

http://www.huntsdc.gov.uk/NR/rdonlyres/3F6CFE28-C5F0-4BA0-9BF2-76EBAE06C89D/0/Petitionsleaflet.pdf or telephone 01480 388006 
 

 

Subject/Matter 
for Decision 

Decision/ 
recommendation 
to be made by 

Date 
decision to 
be taken 

Documents 
Available 

How relevant Officer 
can be contacted 

Consultation Relevant    
Executive 
Councillor 

Relevant 
Overview & 

Scrutiny Panel 

 
Results of Cambridge 
Sub-Region Strategic 
Housing Market 
Assessment (SHMA) 
 
 
 

 
Cabinet 
 

 
12 Jun 2008 
 

 
None. 
 

 
Trish Reed, Housing Strategy Manager Tel 
No. (01480) 388203 - email - 
Trish.Reed@huntsdc.gov.uk 
 

 
Public consultation 
– 10/12/07 – 4/2/08  

 
Mrs D C 
Reynolds 
 

 
Service Delivery 
 

 
Insurance Liability 
Test Case - Zurich 
Municipal/MMI*** 
 
 
 

 
Cabinet 
 

 
12 Jun 2008 
 

 
Court Papers 
 

 
Vicki Stevens, Solicitor Tel No. (01480) 
388023 or email - 
Vicki.Stevens@huntsdc.gov.uk 
 

 
  

 
A Hansard 
 

 
Corporate and 
Strategic 
Framework 
 

4



Subject/Matter 
for Decision 

Decision/ 
recommendation 
to be made by 

Date 
decision to 
be taken 

Documents 
Available 

How relevant Officer 
can be contacted 

Consultation Relevant    
Executive 
Councillor 

Relevant 
Overview & 

Scrutiny Panel 

 
To adopt Earith 
Conservation Area 
Boundary Changes 
and Character 
Statement 
 
 
 

 
Cabinet 
 

 
12 Jun 2008 
 

 
Draft Consultation 
Document 
 

 
Richard Probyn, Planning Policy Manager 
Tel No. 01480 388430 or email - 
Richard.Probyn@huntsdc.gov.uk 
 

 
Approve changes 
for adoption having 
followed 
consultation with 
the public and 
statutory bodies  

 
P L E Bucknell 
 

 
Service Support 
 

 
To adopt the 
Hemingfords 
Conservation Area 
Boundary changes 
and Character 
Statement 
 
 
 

 
Cabinet 
 

 
12 Jun 2008 
 

 
Draft consultation 
document 
 

 
Richard Probyn, Planning Policy Manager 
Tel No 01480 388430 or e-mail 
Richard.Probyn@huntsdc.gov.uk 
 

 
Approve changes 
for adoption having 
followed 
consultation with 
the public and 
statutory bodies  

 
P L E  Bucknell 
 

 
Service Support 
 

 
Grant Aid to 
Voluntary and 
Community 
Organisations*** 
 
 
 

 
Grants 
 

 
12 Jun 2008 
 

 
None 
 

 
Dan Smith, Community Initiatives Manager 
Tel No. 01480 388377 or email - 
Dan.Smith@huntsdc.gov.uk 
 

 
  

 
Mrs D C 
Reynolds 
T V Rogers 
 

 
Service Delivery 
 

 
Corporate Equality 
Policy - Action Plan 
Progress*** 
 
 
 

 
Cabinet 
 

 
12 Jun 2008 
 

 
Corporate Equality 
Policy - Action Plan 
Progress 
 

 
Mrs Louise Sboui, Policy Officer Tel No. 
(01480) 388032 or email. 
Louise.Sboui@huntsdc.gov.uk 
 

 
Overview and 
Scrutiny Panel - 
Service Delivery 
and Equality 
Steering Group   

 
A Hansard 
 

 
Service Delivery 
 

 
Response to 
Consultation on Sub-
National Review of 
Economic 
Development - 
Approval of 
Submission*** 
 
 
 

 
Cabinet 
 

 
12 Jun 2008 
 

 
Prosperous Places:  
Taking Forward the 
Sub-National Review 
of Economic 
Development and 
Regeneration (March 
2008) 
 

 
Ms Corrine Garbett, Economic Development 
Manager Tel No. (01480) 388459 or email. 
Corrine.Garbett@huntsdc.gov.uk 
 

 
  

 
A Hansard 
 

 
Service Delivery 
 

5



Subject/Matter 
for Decision 

Decision/ 
recommendation 
to be made by 

Date 
decision to 
be taken 

Documents 
Available 

How relevant Officer 
can be contacted 

Consultation Relevant    
Executive 
Councillor 

Relevant 
Overview & 

Scrutiny Panel 

 
Growing Success - 
Performance 
Monitoring Report 
 
 
 

 
Cabinet 
 

 
12 Jun 2008 
 

 
Performance report 
 

 
Ian Leatherbarrow, Head of Policy and 
Strategic Services Tel No 01480 388005 or 
e-mail - Ian.Leatherbarrow@huntsdc.gov.uk 
 

 
  

 
A Hansard 
 

 
Service Delivery 
and 
Service Support 
 

 
Economic 
Development 
Strategy 
 
 
 

 
Cabinet 
 

 
12 Jun 2008 
 

 
Huntingdonshire in 
Perspective 
 
Regional Economic 
Development 
Strategy EEDA 
 

 
Ian Leatherbarrow, Head of Policy and 
Strategic Services Tel No - 01480 388005 or 
email - Ian.Leatherbarrow@huntsdc.gov.uk 
 

 
Stakeholder  

 
A Hansard 
 

 
Service Delivery 
 

 
St Ives Environmental 
Improvements 
 
 
 

 
Cabinet 
 

 
12 Jun 2008 
 

 
None. 
 

 
Chris Allen, Project and Assets Manager Tel 
No 01480 388380 or email - 
Chris.Allen@huntsdc.gov.uk 
 

 
Public consultation  

 
P L E Bucknell 
 

 
Service Delivery 
 

 
MTP Process 
 
 
 

 
Cabinet 
 

 
12 Jun 2008 
 

 
Dependent upon 
Proposals 
 

 
Steve Couper, Head of Financial Services 
Tel No 01480 388103 or e-mail - 
Steve.Couper@huntsdc.gov.uk 
 

 
Overview and 
Scrutiny (CSF) – 
3rd June 2008.  

 
T V Rogers 
 

 
Corporate 
Strategic 
Framework 
 

 
To adopt the Core 
Strategy for 
submission to the 
Secretary of State 
 
 
 

 
Cabinet 
 

 
12 Jun 2008 
 

 
None. 
 

 
Richard Probyn, Planning Policy Manager 
Tel No. (01480) 388430 - or email - 
Richard.Probyn@huntsdc.gov.uk 
 

 
Approve changes 
for adoption having 
followed 
consultation with 
the public and 
statutory bodies.  

 
P L E Bucknell 
 

 
Service Support 
 

 
A141/Kings Ripton 
Road Junction 
Improvement 
Scheme*** 
 
 
 

 
Cabinet 
 

 
26 Jun 2008 
 

 
None. 
 

 
Steve Ingram, Head of Planning Services Tel 
No. (01480) 388400 or email - 
Steve.Ingram@huntsdc.gov.uk 
 

 
  

 
P L E Bucknell 
 

 
Service Support 
 

6



Subject/Matter 
for Decision 

Decision/ 
recommendation 
to be made by 

Date 
decision to 
be taken 

Documents 
Available 

How relevant Officer 
can be contacted 

Consultation Relevant    
Executive 
Councillor 

Relevant 
Overview & 

Scrutiny Panel 

 
Outcome of Cambs 
Supporting People 
Home Improvement 
Agency Review 
 
 
 

 
Cabinet 
 

 
26 Jun 2008 
 

 
None 
 

 
Steve Plant, Head of Housing Services Tel 
No. 01480 388240 or email - 
Steve.Plant@huntsdc.gov.uk 
 

 
  

 
Mrs D C 
Reynolds 
 

 
Service Delivery 
 

 
Section 106 
Agreement 
Partnership and other 
arrangements 
 
 
 

 
Cabinet 
 

 
26 Jun 2008 
 

 
None. 
 

 
Ian Leatherbarrow, Head of Policy and 
Strategic Services Tel No. (01480) 388005 - 
email - Ian.Leatherbarrow@huntsdc.gov.uk 
 

 
  

 
P L E Bucknell 
 

 
Service Support 
 

 
Sustainable 
Community Strategy 
(draft and final 
documents) 
 
 
 

 
Cabinet 
 
Cabinet 
 

 
26 Jun 2008 
 
25 Sep 2008 
 

 
None. 
 

 
Ian Leatherbarrow, Head of Policy and 
Strategic Services Tel No. 01480 388005 - 
email - Ian.Leatherbarrow@huntsdc.gov.uk 
 

 
Public/Stakeholder 
Consultation  

 
I C Bates 
 

 
Corporate 
Strategic 
Framework 
 

 
Community 
Engagement*** 
 
 
 

 
Cabinet 
 

 
26 Jun 2008 
 

 
Previous Report to 
Cabinet 
 

 
Ian Leatherbarrow, Head of Policy and 
Strategic Services Tel No. (01480) 388005 or 
email. Ian.Leatherbarrow@huntsdc.gov.uk 
 

 
  

 
A Hansard 
 

 
Service Delivery 
 

 
To adopt Design Brief 
for former Primrose 
Lane Hospital, 
Huntingdon 
 
 
 

 
Cabinet 
 

 
26 Jun 2008 
 

 
Draft consultation 
document 
 

 
Richard Probyn, Planning Policy Manager 
Tel No 01480 388430 or e-mail - 
Richard.Probyn@huntsdc.gov.uk 
 

 
Approve changes 
for adoption having 
followed 
consultation with 
the public and 
statutory bodies  

 
P L E Bucknell 
 

 
Service Support 
 

 
New Accommodation 
Delivery - Mid-
Programme 
Review*** 
 
 
 

 
Cabinet 
 

 
17 Jul 2008 
 

 
None 
 

 
Richard Preston, Head of Technical Services 
Tel No. (01480) 388340 or email 
Richard.Preston@huntsdc.gov.uk 
 

 
None  

 
L M Simpson 
 

 
Corporate and 
Strategic 
Framework 
 

7



Subject/Matter 
for Decision 

Decision/ 
recommendation 
to be made by 

Date 
decision to 
be taken 

Documents 
Available 

How relevant Officer 
can be contacted 

Consultation Relevant    
Executive 
Councillor 

Relevant 
Overview & 

Scrutiny Panel 

 
Report on adoption of 
local standards for 
the provision of sports 
facilities in 
Huntingdonshire 
 
 
 

 
Cabinet 
 

 
17 Jul 2008 
 

 
Local Standards for 
the provision of sports 
facilities in 
Huntingdonshire 
 

 
Ms J Peadon, Leisure Development Manager 
Tel No 01489 388048 or e-mail - 
Jo.Peadon@huntsdc.gov.uk 
 

 
  

 
Mrs D C 
Reynolds 
 

 
Service Delivery 
 

 
To adopt Design Brief 
for Mayfield Drive, 
Huntingdon 
 
 
 

 
Cabinet 
 

 
17 Jul 2008 
 

 
Draft consultation 
document 
 

 
Richard Probyn, Planning Policy Manager 
Tel No 01480 388430 or e-mail - 
Richard.Probyn@huntsdc.gov.uk 
 

 
Approve changes 
for adoption having 
followed 
consultation with 
the public and 
statutory bodies  

 
P L E Bucknell 
 

 
Service Support 
 

 
Public Arts Policy 
 
 
 

 
Cabinet 
 

 
17 Jul 2008 
 

 
Public Arts Policy 
 

 
Ms Viv Peters, Arts Service Manager Tel No. 
01480 388057 or email 
Viv.Peters@huntsdc.gov.uk 
 

 
  

 
Mrs D C 
Reynolds 
 

 
Service Delivery 
 

 
To adopt Somersham 
Conservation Area 
Boundary Changes 
and Character 
Statement 
 
 
 

 
Cabinet 
 

 
4 Sep 2008 
 

 
Draft Consultation 
Document 
 

 
Richard Probyn, Planning Policy Manager 
Tel No. 01480 388430 or email - 
Richard.Probyn@huntsdc.gov.uk 
 

 
Approve changes 
for adoption having 
followed 
consultation with 
the public and 
statutory bodies  

 
P L E Bucknell 
 

 
Service Support 
 

 
To adopt Urban 
Design Framework 
for south of High 
Street, Ramsey 
 
 
 

 
Cabinet 
 

 
4 Sep 2008 
 

 
Draft consultation 
document 
 

 
Richard Probyn, Planning Policy Manager 
Tel No 01480 388430 or e-mail - 
Richard.Probyn@huntsdc.gov.uk 
 

 
Approve changes 
for adoption having 
followed 
consultation with 
the public and 
statutory bodies  

 
P L E Bucknell 
 

 
Service Support 
 

 
Financial Strategy*** 
 
 
 

 
Cabinet 
 

 
4 Sep 2008 
 

 
Previous Year's 
Budget Report 
Various Annexes 
 

 
Steve Couper, Head of Financial Services 
Tel No. (01480) 388103 or email. 
Steve.Couper@huntsdc.gov.uk 
 

 
Overview and 
Scrutiny (CSF)  

 
T V Rogers 
 

 
Corporate 
Strategic 
Framework 
 

8



Subject/Matter 
for Decision 

Decision/ 
recommendation 
to be made by 

Date 
decision to 
be taken 

Documents 
Available 

How relevant Officer 
can be contacted 

Consultation Relevant    
Executive 
Councillor 

Relevant 
Overview & 

Scrutiny Panel 

 
To adopt Urban 
Design Framework 
for land at Buttsgrove 
Way, Mayfield Drive, 
Huntingdon 
 
 
 

 
Cabinet 
 

 
4 Sep 2008 
 

 
Draft consultation 
document 
 

 
Richard Probyn, Planning Policy Manager 
Tel No 01480 388430 or e-mail - 
Richard.Probyn@huntsdc.gov.uk 
 

 
Approve changes 
for adoption having 
followed 
consultation with 
the public and 
statutory bodies  

 
P L E Bucknell 
 

 
Service Support 
 

 
Parish Plans and 
Local Plan Policy*** 
 
 
 

 
Cabinet 
 

 
25 Sep 2008 
 

 
Previous Cabinet 
Report - Dec 2003 
 

 
Richard Probyn, Planning Policy Manager 
Tel No. (01480) 388430 or email. 
Richard.Probyn@huntsdc.gov.uk 
 

 
Adopt process of 
incorporating 
relevant Parish Plan 
Policies into 
Planning Policies   

 
P L E Bucknell 
 

 
Service Support 
 

 
Huntingdon West 
Area Action Plan 
Preferred Options*** 
 
 
 

 
Cabinet 
 

 
25 Sep 2008 
 

 
Issues and Options 
Report and Summary 
of Representations 
 

 
Richard Probyn, Planning Policy Manager 
Tel No. (01480) 388430 or email - 
Richard.Probyn@huntsdc.gov.uk 
 

 
Approve for 
Consultation  

 
P L E Bucknell 
 

 
Service Support 
 

 
Development Control 
Policies Preferred 
Options 
 
 
 

 
Cabinet 
 

 
25 Sep 2008 
 

 
Issues and Options 
Report and Summary 
of Representations 
 

 
Richard Probyn, Planning Policy Manager 
Tel No. 01480 388430 or email - 
Richard.Probyn@huntsdc.gov.uk 
 

 
Approve for 
Consultation  

 
P L E Bucknell 
 

 
Service Support 
 

 

9



1
0

T
h
is

 p
a

g
e
 is

 in
te

n
tio

n
a
lly

 le
ft b

la
n
k



 

 
 

  
 

COMT 27TH MAY 2008 
OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY 10TH JUNE 2008 
CABINET 12TH JUNE 2008 

 

LOCAL DEVELOPMENT FRAMEWORK 
THE CORE STRATEGY - 

SUBMISSION DOCUMENT 
(Report by Head of Planning Services) 

 
 
1. INTRODUCTION 
 
1.1 The purpose of the report is for the Cabinet to endorse the submission 

document for the Core Strategy before it is approved by Council for 
formal submission to the Secretary of State.  

 
 
2. BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
 
2.1 The Core Strategy is the primary, over-arching document that guides 

and enables the strategy for the future growth and development of 
Huntingdonshire. Once submitted to the Secretary of State it will be 
subject to examination by an independent Inspector to assess whether it 
meets the tests of soundness.   

 
2.2 The Council consulted on Issues and Options (the Regulation 25 stage) 

for the Core Strategy during May, June and July 2007 and on the 
Preferred Option ( the Regulation 26 ) stage in December 2007 and 
January 2008.  In addition to engaging with stakeholders (such as Parish 
Councils, the County Council, Primary Care Trust, Highways Agency, 
Environment Agency etc), the general public were also invited to 
comment.  The Documents were made widely available at Pathfinder 
House and in libraries and local access points across the District and 
through an interactive on-line version on the Council’s website.  The 
representations made on the Issues and Options, the document 
‘Towards a Spatial Strategy’ which discussed a number of strategic 
options and the Preferred Option Document have been taken into 
account in formulating this Submission Document. 

 
2.3 The Core Strategy specifically takes account of the existing adopted 

Community Strategy and its emerging replacement, the Sustainable 
Community Strategy.  The Core Strategy also has been prepared taking 
into account the emerging polices in the East of England Plan (which 
has now been published) and current and emerging Government 
Guidance. 

 
2.4 The Core Strategy has been set out in two volumes (see appendix).  

Volume 1 takes the form of a draft strategy document outlining the key 
policies and their reasoned justification.  Volume 2 records how each 
policy was assessed and evaluated and thus forms the necessary audit 

Agenda Item 4

11



trail outlining the development of the policies.  It also includes, in an 

appendix, a schedule of responses to the preferred option and 
changes made to reflect the concerns raised. 

 

2.5 When the Core Strategy is submitted a number of supporting 
documents will accompany it. These are available on the Members 
page of the intranet for Members to inspect and note their contents.  
The supporting documents are: 

• Statement of Pre-Submission Consultation 

• Final Sustainability Appraisal of the Core Strategy (including Equalities 
Impact Assessment) 

• Habitats Regulations Assessment of the Huntingdonshire LDF Core 
Strategy 

• Amendments to the Proposals Map 

• Core Strategy DPD Soundness Self-Assessment 

 
 

3. EVIDENCE BASE 
 
3.1 The Core Strategy has been informed by a wide range of technical 

documents (the Evidence Base). A full list is set out in the Core Strategy 
Volume 1, Appendix 2. The most influential of these include: 

• Huntingdonshire Community Strategy 

• Sustainable Community Strategy (emerging) 

• Cambridgeshire Strategic Housing Market Assessment 

• Huntingdonshire Strategic Housing Land Availability Assessment 

• Employment Land Review 

• Huntingdonshire Retail Assessment 2005 and Update 2007 

• Green Infrastructure Strategy 
 
 
4. THE CORE STRATEGY 
 
4.1 It is proposed that the Core Strategy will deliver at least 5,450 new 

dwellings, 85ha of employment land and up to 24,000sq m of retail 
development during the period 2006 - 2026. These figures are over and 
above what is already proposed in existing plans and in commitments 
and are considered as a minimum target to reach the challenging new 
levels of provision which are being advocated in the East of England 
Plan. 

  
4.2 Until the time that the Core Strategy is adopted significant weight must 

be given to the policies in the approved East of England Plan together 
with the Huntingdonshire Interim Planning Policies and the saved 
policies from the Huntingdonshire Local Plan and Structure Plan.  

 
 
5. RECOMMENDATION(S) 
 
5.1 Cabinet is recommended to agree that, subject to a legal audit of the 

document, the Core Strategy as set out in the Appendix (as Volume 1 
and Volume 2) and the documents listed in paragraph 2.5 above  be 
submitted to Council for approval  and to agree that any minor additional 
editing and updating which may be needed prior to publication be 
delegated to the Head of Planning Services after consultation with the 
Executive Councillor for Planning Strategy and Transport. 

12



 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
 
As stated in paragraph 3 of the text. 
 
 
Contact Officer: Steve Ingram, Head of Planning Services 
 (((( 01480 388400 
 

13



14

This page is intentionally left blank



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



69



70



71



72



73



74



75



76



77



78



79



80



81



82

This page is intentionally left blank



83



84



85



86



87



88



89



90



91



92



93



94



95



96



97



98



99



100



101



102



103



104



105



106



107



108



109



110



111



112



113



114



115



116



117



118



119



120



121



122



123



124



125



126



127



128



129



130



131



132



133



134



135



136



137



138



139



140



141



142



143



144



145



146



147



148



149



150



151



152



153



154



155



156



157



158



159



160



161



162



163



164



165



166



167



168



169



170



171



172



173



174



175



176



177



178



179



180



181



182



183



184



185



186



187



188



189



190



191



192



193



194



195



196



197



198



199



200



201



202



203



204



205



206



207



208



209



210



211



212



213



214



215



216



217



218



219



220



221



222



223



224



225



226



227



228



229



230



231



232



233



234



235



236



237



238



239



240



241



242



243



244



245



246



247



248



249



250



251



252



253



254



255



256



257



258



259



260



261



262



263



264



265



266



267



268



269



270



271



272



273



274



275



276



277



278



279



280



281



282



283



284



285



286



287



288



289



290



291



292



293



294



295



296



297



298



299



300



301



302



303



304



305



306



307



308



309



310



311



312



313



314



315



316



317



318



319



320



321



322



323



324



325



326



327



328



329



330



331



332



333



334



335



336



337



338



339



340



341



342



343



344



345



346



347



348



349



350



351



352



353



354



355



356



357



358



359



360



361



362



363



364



365



366



367



368



369



370



371



372



373



374



375



376



377



378



379



380



381



382



383



384



385



386



387



388



389



390



 
   
 
 
OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY PANEL 
(SERVICE SUPPORT) 

                               10TH JUNE 2008 

 
 

CYCLING 
(Report by Head of Planning Services) 

 
1. INTRODUCTION  
 
1.1 During 2007, the Overview and Scrutiny Panel established a Working 

Group to investigate the Council’s expenditure on Cycling in 
Huntingdonshire. 

 
1.2 The Panel’s initial interest was prompted by concern expressed by a 

Ward Member over the lack of progress in providing a cycleway within 
his Ward. 

 
  

2. BACKGROUND 
 
2.1 The Working Party met on three occasions and was acquainted with 

the role that the District Council plays with regard to cycling provision 
across the District. This included funding contributions through our 
MTP, in partnership with the County Council Local Transport Plan 
(LTP) budget, negotiation of S.106 agreements, provision of cycle 
racks and cycle route promotion. 

 
2.2 The Working Party also sought information on the level of funding 

provided by the County Council in relation to cycle route provision. 
While it became evident that there is a well-established partnership 
arrangement in place to fund and deliver improved cycling and 
walking routes within the Market Towns as part LTP strategies in 
place, the picture was less clear elsewhere unless as part of S.106 
negotiations, such as the local cycling initiatives already secured 
within Yaxley. 

 
2.3 Reference was also made to the existing Cycling Strategy adopted by 

the Council in 2000 which contained a number of specific objectives 
and also an approved list of 41 priority routes for future consideration 
in a number of rural and urban situations. It was evident that while the 
urban routes were now being considered through the Market Town 
Transport Strategies (MTTS), it was unlikely that the majority of the 
more rural based routes would ever be addressed unless additional 
resources were made available. 

 

Agenda Item 5

391



2.4 Following Officer discussions with the County Council relating to 
similar work undertaken within South Cambridgeshire during 2006, 
the County Council agreed to work with the District Council to update 
the cycling priorities originally agreed in 2000 and to prepare an 
action plan for implementation. On this basis, the County Council 
indicated that it would consider funding an agreed programme in 
partnership with the District Council. 

 
2.5 The Working Party also noted that the adoption of a revised Action 

Plan would also give officers of both Council’s the ability to secure 
S.106 funding from any development that had a direct impact on any 
of the agreed routes within an updated Action Plan. By way of 
example, it was on this basis that such S.106 funding was secured 
within Yaxley from the original work outlined in 2000, for works that 
will now commence construction within the village during 2008/09. In 
addition to S.106 funding, the construction works will also be part-
funded utilising the District Council 2008/09 ‘Safe Cycle Routes’ 
budget within the current MTP. 

 
 
3. CURRENT POSITION  
 
3.1 Following the Panel meeting in February 2008, officers from both 

Council’s have met on two occasions. At the first meeting a revised 
list of schemes to be prioritised was agreed. This is shown at Annex A 
and also includes those urban-based routes from the original work in 
2000 that will no longer be included in this work but will be considered 
separately through the MTTS or other process. 

 
3.2 At the second meeting, officers have undertaken the prioritisation 

exercise of the 28 routes remaining. This has been undertaken using 
the countywide scoring template, an example of which is included at 
Annex B. As noted previously by Panel, the results of this exercise will 
be reported to the Huntingdonshire Traffic Management Area Joint 
Committee on 7th July 2008, they being the body responsible for the 
approval of such work. 

 
3.3 In terms of funding to enable any commencement of work to deliver 

the Action Plan, the District Council MTP has an indicative sum of 
£91k in 2009/10 under the heading of ‘Safe Cycle Routes’. It is 
planned that all or part of this sum will be utilised to commence 
delivery of an agreed Action Plan, together with any S.106 funding 
that might be available.  

 
3.4 At the present time, the County Council has no ‘ring-fenced’ budget 

for Huntingdonshire within their LTP for this specific type of cycling 
initiative but do have a budget that is available for projects on a 
countywide basis. It should be noted however that they do provide 
significant funding as part of the MTTS process for schemes that 
includes cycling initiatives. 

392



3.5 In terms of the level of County Council contribution that might be 
available, formal agreement has still to be given but it is hoped that a 
similar amount to the District Council commitment might be ‘match-
funded’. 

 
 
4. CONCLUSIONS 
 
4.1 The Panel are invited to note the progress being made in developing 

a revised Action Plan for Safe Cycle Routes. 
 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION 

 
Notes of the Cycling Working Group 
Medium Term Plan 
Reports and Minutes of meetings of the Overview and Scrutiny Panel (Service 
Support) 
Market Town Transport Strategies 
Cycling Strategy for Huntingdonshire 2000 
Local Transport Plan 
 
 
Contact 
Officer: 

Mr Stuart Bell – Transport Team Leader 

 (((( (01480) 388387 
 

 

393



ANNEX A 
 
1) Revised List of proposed Cycling Schemes to be prioritised and approved 
by the Huntingdonshire AJC. 
 

• Yaxley to Norman Cross 

• Brampton to Grafham Water 

• Brampton to Godmanchester (via Berry Lane) 

• Godmanchester to Houghton (alternative to Westside Common) 

• Alconbury/Stukeleys to Huntingdon 

• Huntingdon Research Centre – link to highway network 

• Earith, Bluntisham, Needingworth to St. Ives (Needingworth to St. Ives 
part of Route 10 of St. Ives MTTS) 

• Church Road, Brampton 

• Old Thrapston Road, Brampton 

• Buckden Road, Brampton 

• Brampton to Buckden 

• Grafham Road to Brampton Hut, Brampton 

• Perry Road, Grafham Water to Buckden 

• Hilton to Fenstanton/St.Ives 

• Church Street/Mill Way, Holywell to Needingworth 

• Kings Ripton to Huntingdon/St. Ives 

• St. Neots to Godmanchester or Offords to Godmanchester 

• Warboys to St. Ives (via east side of RAF Wyton/Old Ramsey Road) 

• Waresley to Gamlingay (South Cambridgeshire) 

• Holywell to Over (South Cambridgeshire) 

• West End, Brampton 

• Layton Crescent to RAF Brampton 

• Tilbrook to Kimbolton 

• St. Ives to Huntingdon (The Waits, via Thicket Path, Thicket Road, 
Houghton/Wyton, A1123 to Hartford) (revised description since 2000) 

• Glatton to Sawtry (new addition since 2000) 

• Yaxley to Farcet 

• Hemingfords to Houghton (revised description since 2000) 

• Perry Village Cycle Route (new addition since 2000) 
 
2) Cycling-based projects from 2000 to be considered through Market Town 
Transport Strategy/other process 
 

SCHEME STRATEGY/FUNDING STATUS 
Yaxley to Farcet AJC/S.106/CCC/HDC Phase 1 under construction 2008/09. Phases 

2 & 3 to follow subject to AJC and funding 
approval. (Yaxley to Farcet subject to 
prioritisation) 

Hampton to Yaxley AJC/S.106/CCC/HDC Peterborough City Council section complete 
on A15 to County boundary. Hunts section to 
be undertaken as part of Phase 1 Yaxley to 
Farcet scheme above. 

St. Ives East/West link 
at Fairfields 

St. Ives MTTS Now included as Route 4 in MTTS. Works yet 
to be programmed. 

394



St. Ives East/ West link 
at Harding Way or 
Bramley Road 

St. Ives MTTS Now included as Route 1 in MTTS. Works yet 
to be programmed. 

St. Ives East/West link 
at Derwent Close to 
Nuffield Road 

St. Ives MTTS Now included as Route 1 in MTTS. Works yet 
to be programmed. 

Stukeley Meadows to 
Marriott Hotel 

Huntingdon & 
Godmanchester MTTS 

Partly delivered by completion of Views 
Common (footpath) link. Possible 
enhancement as part of any future MTTS 
review and A14 Huntingdon Viaduct options. 

Ramsey Road, St. Ives St. Ives MTTS Now included as Routes 2 & 3 in MTTS. 
Works yet to be programmed. 

St. Audrey’s Lane, St. 
Ives inc. link to 
Needingworth 

St. Ives MTTS Now included as Route 3 in MTTS. Works yet 
to be programmed. Link to Needingworth 
Route 10. 

Houghton Road, St. 
Ives 

St. Ives MTTS Now included as Route 3 in MTTS. Works yet 
to be programmed. Also links to residential 
development west of St. Ives. 

Warners Park, St. Ives St. Ives MTTS Superseded by Route 4 at Fairfields/Broad 
Leas/Needingworth Road in MTTS. 

Ermine Street 
(improvement of 
existing), Huntingdon 

Huntingdon & 
Godmanchester MTTS 

Now included as part of MTTS and will be 
part-delivered during 2008/09. 

Huntingdon Ring-Road Huntingdon & 
Godmanchester Market Town 
Transport Strategy 

Marked as existing/alternative route within 
MTTS and any works will be considered as 
part of strategy. 

Stukeley Meadows to 
Ermine Street, 
Huntingdon 

Huntingdon & 
Godmanchester MTTS 

Route secured as part of redevelopment of 
bus garage and secured by S.106 agreement. 
Will be delivered as part of MTTS. 

St. Peter’s 
Road/Ermine 
Street/Stukeley 
Meadows/Hinchingbroo
ke, Huntingdon 

Huntingdon & 
Godmanchester MTTS 

Routes now included as part of MTTS; 

• St. Peter’s Road – delivery 2008 

• Ermine Street – part delivery 2008 

• Stukeley Meadows/Hinchingbrooke 
part delivered by View Common 
(footpath). Possible enhancement as 
part of any future MTTS review and 
A14 Huntingdon Viaduct options. 

Meadow 
Lane/Needingworth 
Road to Town Centre, 
St. Ives 

St. Ives MTTS Now included as Route 4 in MTTS. Works yet 
to be programmed. 

Sallowbush Road, 
Huntingdon 

Huntingdon & 
Godmanchester MTTS 

Now included as part of MTTS. Link to Kings 
Ripton Road and parallel route at Oxmire 
Lane completed. Links to St. Peter’s Road 
and Coneygear Road under 
design/construction. 

Godmanchester (Black 
Bull) to Town Bridge. 
Improvement of existing 
route. 

Huntingdon & 
Godmanchester MTTS 

Completed scheme. 

 

395



ANNEX B 
 

CCC Cycling Score Sheet Example 
 
 

Category Description Score 

 
Road Safety 
 
8 points 

 
Significant improvement to cyclist safety (+6) 
 
Significant improvement to pedestrian safety 
(+2) 

 

 
Cycling 
Benefits 
 
19 points 

 
Provides a new cycle link (+4) 
 
Caters for known existing or nearby demand (+5) 
 
Likely to generate significant new use / modal shift (+5) 
 
Provides a route to school (+3) 
 
Links to the National Cycle Network (+2) 
 

 

 
Local 
Environment 
 
5 points 

 
Environmental impact – (Aesthetic considerations, visual 
intrusion, landscape, habitat creation/destruction, 
disturbance, quality of life) (+/-5) 
 

 

 
Walking 
 
6 points 

 
Provides a new / improved facility for pedestrians (+1) 
 
Effect on cycle/pedestrian conflict (+/-5) 
 

 

  
Other 
 
7 points 

 
Improves accessibility (+4) 
 
Supporting funding (S106, grants) linked to scheme (+3) 
 

 

 
TOTAL 
POINTS 
 

  
(+45 max) 

 

 

396



OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY PANEL    10TH JUNE 2008 
(SERVICE SUPPORT) 

 
PARKING FOR HEAVY GOODS VEHICLES 

(Report of the Working Group appointed by the Panel) 
 

1. INTRODUCTION 
 
1.1 At its meeting held on 12th February 2008, the Overview and Scrutiny 

Panel (Service Support) decided to establish a working group to review 
the issue of Heavy Goods Vehicle (HGV) parking throughout the 
District. The working group comprised Councillors K M Baker, P H 
Dakers, P M D Godfrey and L W McGuire. This matter had been raised 
initially by Councillor Dakers in response to the closure of the “Night 
Owl” lorry parking facility at Alconbury and his concerns relating to a 
reduction in overnight parking facilities for HGVs in the District. 

 

2. METHODOLOGY 
 
2.1 The Working Group met on 25th April 2008 and received information 

from the Transportation Team Leader relating to:- 
 

Ø work being undertaken and guidance prepared by the 
County Council on parking facilities for HGVs; 

Ø the provision and ownership of HGV parking sites; 
Ø the role of local authorities in the allocation and 

redevelopment of sites; 
Ø Government policy; and 
Ø a 2007 study by the Department for Transport on the 

development of a policy for service areas and other roadside 
facilities on motorways and all-purpose trunk roads in 
England 

 
2.2 Information was obtained from similar reviews carried out by other 

authorities, reports having been obtained from the authorities in 
question. Of those available, the Working Group considered the 
detailed studies undertaken by Suffolk and Kent County Councils into 
the problems of overnight lorry parking in those counties. The Kent 
investigation had been undertaken in conjunction with a number of 
District Councils, the Port of Dover, Department for Transport and 
Highways Agency and had involved the use of external consultants. 

 
2.3 The reviews undertaken were extensive, involving 
 

Ø Gathering of evidence from key stakeholders;  
Ø Consultation with local communities, HGV operators / drivers 

and key organisations; and 
Ø an audit of HGV parking sites within the County. 

Agenda Item 6

397



 
Lengthy reports were produced with a series of recommendations 
relating to the need to provide new HGV parking sites and to influence 
new parking opportunities through development applications. Other 
recommendations related to the need to improve signs to existing 
facilities, together with the quantity, quality and distribution of 
information provided to drivers and operators and to improve 
enforcement to reduce illegal HGV overnight parking. It was clear from 
the reports that the authorities had concluded that there was little direct 
action that they could take to resolve the problems that they were 
experiencing and that there were reliant upon trying to apply pressure 
and influence to encourage commercial operators to provide overnight 
parking facilities. 
 

2.4 The Working Group’s attention also was drawn to a position paper on 
Lorry Parking prepared by the Parking Forum in 2005, an initiative of 
the British Parking Association (a copy of which is attached at 
Appendix A). The Forum believes that there is a clear need for 
intervention at a national level to facilitate the provision of sufficient 
Truck Stops at strategic points throughout the national road network 
and to work with the business sector and local authorities to try to 
resolve the shortfall. The paper also provided information concerning 
the availability and demand for lorry parking, the cost of providing 
purpose built Truck Sops and unofficial stopping places. 

 
2.5 On the basis of the extensive information and research available on the 

subject, the Working Group concluded that it would not be necessary to 
commission or undertake any further investigations. 

 

3. DELIBERATIONS 
 
3.1 The Working Group discussed the recent closure of the “Night Owl” 

lorry parking facility at Alconbury and the impact upon lorry drivers 
using the A14 and A1 trunk roads passing through the District. It is 
understood that the present owners of the site might be interested in its 
development for alternative uses. However the Group was informed 
that, if any planning application was to be successful, it would be 
necessary for the owners to demonstrate that there was a lack of 
demand for a lorry parking facility or that the use was redundant. 
Having regard to the lack of facilities elsewhere and the number of 
vehicles parked at the roadside, the Group acknowledged the difficulty 
that the owners would have in proving that demand did not exist.  

 

3.2 The Working Group was apprised of the problems being experienced in 
South Cambridgeshire, specifically in Bar Hill and Swavesey, from 
drivers parking HGVs overnight on local roads which was generating 
substantial complaints from businesses and local residents in the area. 
This had prompted representations from the local Member of 

398



Parliament. Although Members’ perception was that HGVs were being 
parked overnight in lay-bys on the trunk roads throughout 
Huntingdonshire, the Group noted that there was little evidence thus far 
of the problems extending into communities and individual estates in 
close proximity to the major routes. The only exception is Alconbury 
where complaints have been received from the Parish Council about 
the parking of HGVs locally following the closure of the Truck Stop. 

 
3.3 In relation to the extent of the problem countywide, the Working Group 

has been advised that a survey has not been undertaken and the 
Transportation Team Leader was asked to determine whether similar 
problems / issues were being encountered in the other Districts. 
Fenland District Council intends to undertake a study of lorry parking 
for their Local Development Framework, is aware of the work 
undertaken by Suffolk County Council and will be discussing the matter 
with Cambridgeshire County Council. Cambridge City Council officers 
are not aware of any specific issues within the city but no response has 
been received to date from either South Cambridgeshire or East 
Cambridgeshire District Councils.  

 
3.4 The Group also was advised of other potential future sites which may 

provide some scope to expand / provide lorry parking facilities along 
the A14 corridor. Although this information is not yet in the public 
domain, the Group was advised that early discussions were taking 
place on the possibility presented by the A14 realignment scheme and 
the drawing up of Local Development Frameworks by the local 
planning authorities in the county. 

 
 
3.5 The Working Group recognised that the lack of HGV parking is a 

national problem. Driver working time regulations and high HGV flows 
create a major demand for Truck Stop facilities. There are currently 
around 1,700 registered goods vehicle operating sites in 
Cambridgeshire alone and over 1.6 billion tonnes of goods are 
transported nationwide by road each year. Research has shown that 
there are insufficient facilities on the trunk road network with those 
routes that provide access to the east coast ports being particularly 
affected. Road transport remains the dominant mode for many hauliers 
and growth in the level of HGV movements, particularly on the A14 
looks likely to continue in the future. This will create a rising demand for 
parking facilities throughout Cambridgeshire, including Huntingdonshire 
and further afield.  This situation will be compounded by current 
proposals to rationalise lay-by arrangements along the A14 corridor. 
The Working Group was informed that a survey of facilities and 
demand within Cambridgeshire had not been undertaken in recent 
years but that the Department for Transport would shortly be issuing for 
consultation a review of lorry parking which might provide further 
impetus for Government action and provide an evidence base 
concerning the need for additional facilities.  

 

399



3.6 The Working Group has noted some of the difficulties in establishing 
HGV parking sites in the absence of financial support from 
Government. The Department for Transport regard HGV parking as a 
purely commercial venture and it is left to the private sector to bring 
forward and operate lorry parking facilities without public funding. The 
construction of a well sited quality truck stop requires substantial 
capital investment which is only viable if a strong and continuing 
income stream can be achieved. Indications suggest that many 
operators and drivers are reluctant to pay more than a minimum for 
using Truck Stop facilities. As a result profit margins are limited and a 
high volume of business is necessary to achieve viability. Free market 
land values also inhibit the commercial provision of sufficient well site 
truck stops and the Working Group noted, for example, the recent 
closure of a Truck Stop in Coventry because of the high cost of ground 
rent. 

 

3.7 The Working Group acknowledged that the District Council’s principal  
influence on the provision of lorry parking facilities in Huntingdonshire 
will be through the Local Development Framework in terms of the 
identification of sites for HGV parking and the possible redevelopment 
of closed sites for alternative uses.  

 

3.8 The Working Group concluded that there was little that the District 
Council could do in isolation to tackle a national problem.  The need for 
Government to look at the problem urgently and work with the business 
sector and local authorities to resolve it was well documented. The 
Group therefore felt that it was unlikely that a detailed study would 
result in recommendations which differed from the conclusions reached 
by other authorities who had already undertaken similar work. A 
practical solution for Huntingdonshire was unlikely and the outcome 
would not have justified the considerable time and resource that would 
have to be committed to undertake a similar exercise. Overall whilst the 
Group recognised  that the Highways Agency did not have a mandate 
to provide such parking or service areas, Members agreed that they 
should be taking a greater role in providing facilities and parking 
provision for the haulage industry. 

 

4. CONCLUSION AND RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
4.1  The Working Group recognised that there was a clear need to provide 

suitable parking facilities on the trunk road network to avoid the 
problems which arise from a lack of provision for local authorities, local 
communities and haulage drivers alike. However, the Group also 
acknowledged that market forces play a predominant role in the 
location and viability of purpose built truck stops which need to attract 
sufficient business at a rate which drivers are prepared to park if they 
are to operate commercially. The Working Group did not explore the 

400



feasibility of a facility being provided or operated by the Council and 
acknowledged that the Council’s primary influence is through the 
planning system and in lobbying Government. 

 
 
4.2 The Working Group has noted that a growth in the number of HGV 

movements will make the situation worse over time and felt that there 
is an urgent need for Government to look at the problem and devise a 
national strategy to provide a network of truck stops that enables HGV 
drivers to comply with relevant regulations on driving times. Having 
regard to issues which were being experienced elsewhere within the 
County it was agreed that a collaborative approach involving all of local 
authorities within Cambridgeshire would be the best approach to 
achieve a positive result. 
 
The Group therefore 

 
RECOMMEND 
 

a) that the County Council be invited to establish a 
countywide forum, involving  the County Council, District 
Councils, local Members of Parliament and HGV operators 
to lobby Government to investigate the problem urgently 
and take steps to resolve it; 

 
b) that the matter be raised through the Cambridgeshire 

Together: Local Area Agreement Board; and 
 

c) that the District Council as local planning authority seek to 
influence the development of suitable HGV parking 
opportunities in conjunction with the A14 realignment 
scheme. 

 
 
BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS 
 
Minutes of Overview & Scrutiny Panel (Service Support) on 12th February 
2008 
 
Briefing note prepared by the Transportation Team Leader 
 
Lorry Parking: Position Paper 10 produced by the Parking Forum in 2005, an 
initiative of the British Parking Association 
 
Kent Overnight Lorry Parking Study, July 2005 
 
HGV Parking Study – Report to the Executive Committee, Suffolk County 
Council, February 2004 
 

401



Information received from Fenland District Council and Cambridge City 
Council 
 
 
Contact Officer: Mrs C Bulman, Democratic Services Officer 
   01480 388234 

402



LORRY PARKING REQUIREMENTS

Satisfactory lorry parking facilities will meet

the following criteria:

m Must not obstruct the highway;

m Must have safe exit from and access to
the highway;

m Surface must bear the axle, steering and
braking loads;

m Area must be of shape and size to
minimise manoeuvring to park;

m Minimum nuisance or hazard to third
parties;

m Must be sufficient parking space when
required;

m Must be on or close to arterial route (to
minimise transit times, fuel consumption

and environmental impact);

m Provide for drivers’ personal needs (food
quality/quantity, toilet, showers);

m Provide for operators’ needs (security,
fuel and basic service needs and cost);

m Be economically viable for private
operation (or subsidised from public funds

if benefits so justify (S.122 of RTRA 1984));

m Provide a segregated area for hazardous
vehicles;

m Simple payment method (so as to avoid
exorbitant fines/clamping).

Parking facilities are needed to accommodate

the following and, of course, any one site

may meet more than one of these needs:

m The home depot facilities;

m For the 45 minute stop on route;

m For the overnight stop, or other longer
stop, on route;

m For vehicles delayed by route closure (eg.
ferries, shuttle, accident, congestion etc.).

Whilst most of the criteria above apply for
the first three requirements there are some
differences in emphasis.

For instance a longer deviation from route
will be more acceptable for an overnight
stop than for a 45 minute break and more
comprehensive driver facilities (eg canteen
and showers) and vehicle security will be
sought at the overnight stop. 8

Lorry parking

INTRODUCTION

parking
FORUM

POSITION PAPER 10

June 2005

There are over 400,000 goods vehicles exceeding 3.5 tonnes

registered in the UK and there are 103,000 operators licensed to

run these types of vehicles. At any one time there are also many

thousands of European registered goods vehicles running on UK

roads. All operators seek to achieve high levels of vehicle

utilisation.

Regulations* require drivers to stop at defined time intervals

whilst traffic congestion can make it impossible to reach planned

stopping points within allowed driving times.

There are limited official stopping places suitable for HGVs and this

lack makes full compliance with the regulations difficult and may

contribute to the volume of theft of loads and vehicles (which averages

about 10 per day).

Provision of sufficient good quality stopping places would provide many

benefits for drivers, operators, the community and the economy.

* the relevant regulations are EU Drivers Hours Regulations Directive 3820/85 and the Road

Transport (Working Time) Regulations 2005.

403



Operation ‘Stack’, which has been developed

by Kent Police, is an example of control and

management of the rapid build up of HGVs

which arises when a major part of the route

closes.To date it has been operated with two

phases according to the severity of the cross

channel delays. Phase1 can accommodate up

to 800 HGVs whilst Phase 2 can

accommodate a further 3,000 HGVs. It is

understood that Kent police and Kent

Highways are now reviewing the operation.

AVAILABILITY OF AND DEMAND FOR

LORRY PARKING

Current research

There is no single source of information on

the location and scope of all lorry parking

facilities. Current availability of, and demand

for lorry parking, across England is being

researched on behalf of the Highways Agency.

A data base is being developed covering HGV

flows (based on DfT and HA data), lorry

parking facilities, driver needs and decision

making processes, operator requirements and

the interests of other stakeholders.

Currently about 300 HGV parking facilities

appear on the data base.These include 130

motorway service areas (MSAs) and 170 other

facilities. Many other unofficial and

unauthorised locations are used for stopovers.

Research is still ‘in process’ but early

indications suggest that:

m Overall there are insufficient facilities on
the network and there are considerable
regional variations;

m In the North West there are high HGV
flows and good provision of parking
facilities;

m The North West is a node for many long
distance HGV flows (eg to and from
Scotland, Ireland and Wales);

m In the North East there are high HGV flows
and poor provision of parking facilities;

m In Central London and the South East
there is very poor provision for lorry
parking despite high vehicle through flows
to and from Europe.

There is wide variation in demand by day of
the week and time of day.

The database will include information on the

location, quality, facilities provided and prices

of lorry parks.

MOTORWAY SERVICE AREAS

These form an essential part of the ‘national

lorry park’ and are, by definition, well sited on

the major routes. However they have several

serious drawbacks for HGV drivers:

m They are often full – and utilisation varies

by time of day;

m Security cover (eg CCTV ) is limited or

non existent;

m Coaches also compete for space on the

heavy vehicle areas;

m Catering and showering facilities may not

be ideal.

OTHER HGV PARKING FACILITIES

HGV drivers generally prefer the facilities

offered by dedicated truck stops – but the

‘offer’ at these does vary considerably. Valued

features include:

m Appropriate value for money menus;

m Washing and toilet facilities;

m Availability of fuel;

m Security for vehicle (particularly where

loads are high value);

m Closeness to route – 50% of drivers are

willing to deviate 2-5 miles and a few much

further;

m Ability to use Truck Stops as an operational

base – which is popular with some owner

drivers.

Operators often direct drivers as to where

they should stop for reasons of security, cost

or route deviation. Others leave the driver to

chose.

The Safer Parking Scheme, which is

increasingly popular for car parks, is currently

being developed to identify and reward best

practice in HGV parking facilities.

THE COST OF PROVIDING PURPOSE

BUILT TRUCK STOPS

The ideal locations for truck stops are also, by

definition, ideal locations for distribution

centres.This means that land values are high.

The construction of a large area of hard

standing with good quality services and proper

security arrangements is also expensive.

Thus creating a well sited quality truck stop

requires substantial capital investment and it

can only be a proper commercial venture if a

strong and continuing income stream can be

achieved.

Indications suggest that many operators and

drivers are reluctant to pay more than a

minimum for using Truck Stop facilities.Thus

high margins are not available and a high

volume of business will be necessary to

achieve viability.

P A R K I N G F O R U M  -  P O S I T I O N P A P E R 1 0

8

404



There are examples of some Truck Stops

upgrading whilst others are closing and the

land use changing.

THE EFFECTS OF LAND

DEVELOPMENT AROUND HGV
OPERATING SITES

Many HGV operators have long established

base sites where there has been little pressure

for alternative land use.

Increasingly new local residential development

near to existing lorry parks/depots may mean

that continuing trucking activities give rise to

complaints on safety or nuisance grounds.This

is despite the trucking activity having been

long established before the residential

development was started.

The result may be the application of

restrictions to the operator’s license - and

these restrictions can challenge the viability of

the trucking business remaining on that site.

Alternative affordable sites may not be available.

Increasing local industrial development can

also drive up land values with the same effect

on the trucking business.These circumstances

are occurring more frequently.

MISCELLANEOUS MATTERS

Signage and Information

Drivers would welcome more comprehensive
signage directing them to official Truck Stops
and this particularly applies for those unfamiliar
with the area in which they are travelling.

The Highways Agency considers signage from
their network directing drivers to Truck Stops
on a case by case basis whilst signage on Local
Authority roads is determined separately.

The presentation of local maps and plans
showing the location of facilities are not co-
ordinated by any common standard and there
are wide and confusing variations of colours,
symbols and scales amongst them. Such plans
are frequently not updated.

DRIVER MOTIVATION AND

UNOFFICIAL STOPPING PLACES

Whilst drivers appreciate the facilities of the
better truck stops those who are paid
uncontrolled overnight expenses may prefer
to avoid the associated parking charges and
treat the expenses as an untaxed income –
this can easily amount to £4,000 of extra
income per year. Acceptable levels of
overnight expenses are controlled and agreed
annually with the Inland Revenue.

Searching out unofficial stopping places,
whether in back streets, quiet roads or

industrial parks, can lead to damage to
carriageways and hard shoulders and may lead
to restrictive or retaliatory measures from
landowners and Local Authorities.

OVERNIGHT PARKING AREAS

WITHOUT SPECIAL FACILITIES

Overnight HGV parking can be very difficult
to locate.

A number of Local Authorities (including all
London Boroughs) have instituted an
overnight ban on lorry parking on their roads.
This is to prevent HGVs taking up valuable
kerb space in residential areas where they
could be seen as unsightly and quite out of
scale with the surroundings. It is also to
prevent drivers from using their HGVs as
home to work transport – a role for which
they are not suited.

Typically overnight bans may affect vehicles
over 7.5 tonnes and extend from 10.00 pm to
6.00 am. Introduction of a ban requires a
Traffic Order and the placing of signs on each
side of every road in the area covered.

It is good practice for a Local Authority to
ensure that suitable off street HGV parking
facilities are available in or near areas covered
by an overnight ban – but it is not a legal
requirement and it is often not provided.

One practical way in which this deficiency might
be resolved could be by studying the many
parking areas which are heavily used by cars
during daytime and empty at night. Examples
are commuter rail stations, retail car parks, out
of town office sites and park & ride sites.

Some such sites may be able to meet the
minimum criteria for over night parking for
HGVs with small expenditure but others will
not have suitable access or satisfactory paving
strength for the purpose.

Some site owners may also be concerned that
opening up such sites, by removing height
limiters, may lead to ‘travellers’ moving on to
them.

MAKING PROVISION

Driver regulations and high HGV flows create
a major demand for Truck Stop facilities but
‘free market’ land values may inhibit
commercial provision of sufficient well sited
truck stops.

It is unreasonable to enforce regulations fully
when the means of full compliance does not
exist.

Thus there is a clear need for intervention at
a national and or local government level to
facilitate the provision of sufficient Truck Stops
at strategic points throughout the national
road network.

P A R K I N G F O R U M  -  P O S I T I O N P A P E R 1 0

8

405



RECOMMENDATIONS FROM THE

FORUM

m That Government look at this problem

urgently and work with the business

sector and Local Authorities to resolve it.

m That the present important study of

supply and demand for Truck Stops and

the services which they provide is

completed as a matter of urgency.

m That the existence of the information

gathered by the study is publicised and the

information made readily available (eg.

websites, mobile phone downloads).

m That the business of providing and

operating Truck Stops is also studied in

depth covering capital and operating costs,

services required, volumes and operating

margins available and regional

characteristics.This study should be

completed quickly.

m That the social, economic and

environmental benefits which Truck Stops

provide are evaluated within the same

timescale as 1 and 3 above.

m That a National strategy is then developed

which will provide a network of Truck

Stops which enables all HGV drivers to

comply with regulations in an efficient way.

m That Regional Transport policy and LTPs

shall include proper recognition of the

need for Truck Stops proportionate to the

HGV traffic in the area.This should include

the identification of suitable sites near

industrial estates and away from residential

areas which can be developed in line with

the requirements defined above.

m That the policy for signing of truckstops

on the strategic network should be

reviewed to meet the industries criticisms

of inadequacy.

m That the possibility of establishing a form

of nationwide site franchising through a

public/private partnership should be

investigated.

m That the possibility of using some

industrial estate roads (which are little

used at night) as official overnight stopping

places with basic catering, security and

toilet facilities provided.

m That Planning Authorities should ensure

that any new industrial development

should have adequate good quality HGV

parking facilities adjacent. If these do not

already exist then new HGV parking

should be included as an integral part of

the development.

m That new sites should be developed to

security standards agreed by the

ACPO/BPA Safer Parking Scheme and that

existing sites should be encouraged to

meet these standards.

© Parking Forum

For further information about the Parking Forum please

contact:

Parking Forum, c/o British Parking Association, Stuart

House, 41-43 Perrymount Road, Haywards Heath,West

Sussex RH16 3BN

Tel: 01444 447300 

Fax: 01444 454105

Email: info@BritishParking.co.uk 

Web: www.BritishParking.co.uk

P A R K I N G F O R U M  -  P O S I T I O N P A P E R 1 0

8

The Parking Forum is an initiative of the British

Parking Association and its current members are:

Automobile Association;

Association of Chief Police Officers;

Association of British Drivers

Association of London Government;

Association of Town Centre Managers

Association of Train Operating Companies;

Bike Parking Security Association;

British Parking Association;

British Motorcyclists Federation;

Confederation of Passenger Transport;

Department for Transport;

Disabled Drivers’ Association

Disabled Persons Transport Advisory Committee

Highways Agency;

Institution of Highways & Transportation;

London Transport Users Committee;

National Federation of Bus Users;

RAC Foundation;

Rail Passengers Council;

Royal Town Planners Institute;

Road Haulage Association;

Strategic Rail Authority;

Transport Research Laboratory.

parking
FORUM

406



 
 

OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY PANEL  
(SERVICE SUPPORT)       10 JUNE 2008 
 
 

MONITORING OF SECTION 106 AGREEMENTS 
(PLANNING OBLIGATIONS) 

(Report by Head of Policy and Strategic Services) 
 
 

1. INTRODUCTION 
 
1.1 The purpose of this report is to provide the Panel with an update on the 

receipt of S106 monies, their allocation to and expenditure on specific 
schemes. The report also provides an overview of future benefits from 
developments that have commenced but where trigger points for 
collection of the monies have not been reached and future potential 
benefits from developments which have not yet commenced. 

 
1.2 As requested by the Panel, a copy of this report has been made 

available to all Members of the Council. 
 
2. BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
 
2.1 The report has three appendices: Appendix A: Section 106 Account 

(covering the period 14 February to 13 May 2008), Appendix B: Future 
benefits by location (development commenced) and Appendix C: Future 
potential benefits by location (development not commenced).  The 
figures have been inflated since the last report, due the addition of 
interest at financial year end of 5.614%. 

 
2.2 Appendix A comprises 4 tables: 
 

•••• Table 1. Schemes in place  
 
These are developments where monies have been received and there is 
a specific scheme in place.  NB: ID215 has a scheme in place for 50% of 
total funds and therefore a further 50% appears under ‘Unallocated’ 
funds. 

 

•••• Table 2. Maintenance 
 

These are developments where monies have been received and where 
part of the account is ring-fenced for maintenance of play equipment 
and open space.  Monies will be used in accordance with approved 
maintenance schedules. 
 

•••• Table 3. Unallocated 
 

These are developments where monies have been received but where a 
specific scheme has yet to be identified. 

 

•••• Table 4. Money spent in the last quarter 
  
 This table shows the actual spending or transfers of money in the last 

quarter.   

Agenda Item 7

407



 
 
2.3 Appendix B shows future S106 benefits by location for developments 

that have commenced but trigger points for the collection of the monies 
have not yet been reached.   ID 33 is a contribution towards Open Space 
Maintenance (shrub bed) in Great Gransden (Operations Department). 

 
2.4 Appendix C shows future potential S106 benefits by location for 

developments that have not yet commenced. 
 
 
3. RECOMMENDATION 
 
3.1 The Panel are invited to review and comment on the contents of the 

monitoring report. 
 
BACKGROUND PAPER 
 
Town & Country Planning Act 1990 
Section 106 Register and database 
 
Contact Officer: Rachel Fuller, Policy Officer 
    ( (01480) 388463 

408



 
- 
1
 -
 

A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 A
 -
 S
e
c
ti
o
n
 1
0
6
 A
c
c
o
u
n
t 

 T
h

is
 s

c
h
e

d
u

le
 h

ig
h

lig
h

ts
 S

1
0
6

 m
o

n
ie

s
 t

h
a

t 
h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 r
e

c
e

iv
e

d
 a

n
d

 a
re

 h
e

ld
 i

n
 a

 s
e
p

a
ra

te
 a

c
c
o

u
n

t 
u
n

ti
l 

th
e

y
 a

re
 n

e
e

d
e

d
 f

o
r 

m
a

in
te

n
a

n
c
e

 o
r 

tr
a
n

s
fe

rr
e

d
 t

o
 r

e
le

v
a

n
t 

s
e

rv
ic

e
 b

u
d

g
e

ts
 (

o
r 

T
o

w
n

 o
r 

P
a

ri
s
h

 C
o

u
n

c
il)

 w
h

e
n

 s
c
h

e
m

e
s
 a

re
 r

e
a

d
y
 t

o
 p

ro
c
e

e
d

. 
W

h
e

re
 

a
p

p
ro

p
ri
a

te
 t

h
e

 s
c
h

e
d
u

le
 a

ls
o

 i
n

c
lu

d
e

s
 a

n
 e

x
p

ir
y
 d

a
te

 b
y
 w

h
ic

h
 t

im
e

 t
h
e

 m
o
n

e
y
 m

u
s
t 

b
e

 s
p

e
n

t.
 I

t 
d

iv
id

e
s
 t

h
e
 a

c
c
o

u
n

t 
in

to
 f

o
u
r 

s
e

c
ti
o

n
s
: 
 

 
T
a
b
le
 1
. 
S
c
h
e
m
e
s
 i
n
 p
la
c
e
: 

fo
r 

w
h

ic
h

 m
o
n

e
y
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n

 r
e

c
e

iv
e

d
 a

n
d

 i
s
 e

a
rm

a
rk

e
d

 t
o

 b
e

 s
p

e
n

t 
o

n
 a

 s
p

e
c
if
ic

 s
c
h
e

m
e
. 

 T
a
b
le
 2
. 
M
a
in
te
n
a
n
c
e
: 

m
o

n
e

y
 r

e
c
e

iv
e

d
 f

o
r 

fu
tu

re
 m

a
in

te
n
a

n
c
e
, 

u
s
u

a
lly

 r
e

la
ti
n

g
 t

o
 p

la
y
 e

q
u

ip
m

e
n
t 

o
r 

o
p
e

n
 s

p
a
c
e

. 
T

h
e

 m
o
n

e
y
 

w
ill

 b
e

 h
e

ld
 i
n

 t
h

is
 a

c
c
o
u

n
t 
u

n
ti
l 
it
 i
s
 d

ra
w

n
 d

o
w

n
 t

o
 p

a
y
 f

o
r 

th
e

 m
a

in
te

n
a
n

c
e

 (
p

ro
p

o
rt

io
n
a

lly
 o

v
e

r 
1

5
 y

e
a

rs
).

  
 T
a
b
le
 3
. 
U
n
a
ll
o
c
a
te
d
: 

m
o
n

e
y
 r

e
c
e

iv
e

d
 w

h
ic

h
 h

a
s
 y

e
t 

to
 b

e
 a

llo
c
a
te

d
 t

o
 a

 s
p
e

c
if
ic

 s
c
h

e
m

e
. 

 T
a
b
le
 4
. 
M
o
n
e
y
 s
p
e
n
t 
in
 t
h
e
 l
a
s
t 
q
u
a
rt
e
r:
 m

o
n

e
y
 p

re
v
io

u
s
ly

 h
e

ld
 i
n

 t
h

e
 a

c
c
o

u
n

t 
w

h
ic

h
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n

 s
p
e

n
t 
o

r 
tr

a
n

s
fe

rr
e

d
 i
n

 t
h
e

 l
a

s
t 

q
u

a
rt

e
r.

 
  S
u
m
m
a
ry
 

  
T
h
is
 q
u
a
rt
e
r 

P
re
v
io
u
s
 q
u
a
rt
e
r 

S
c
h
e
m
e
s
 i
n
 p
la
c
e
 (
T
a
b
le
 1
) 

£
5
8
2
,2
9
0
 

£
2
6
7
,2

2
5
 

M
a
in
te
n
a
n
c
e
 (
T
a
b
le
 2
) 

£
8
1
,0
4
8
 

£
8
0
,7

6
9
 

U
n
a
ll
o
c
a
te
d
 (
T
a
b
le
 3
) 

£
1
2
3
,8
1
6
 

£
1
8
6
,2

6
6
 

T
O
T
A
L
 

£
7
8
7
,1
5
4
 

£
5
3
4
,2

6
0
 

   
 

S
p
e
n
t 
s
in
c
e
 t
h
e
 l
a
s
t 
q
u
a
rt
e
r 

(T
a
b
le
 4
) 

£
6
0
,0
6
3
 

£
5
9
7
,3

9
4
 

  
(N

o
te

: 
T

h
is

 s
c
h

e
d
u

le
 w

a
s
 c

re
a

te
d

 1
4

 M
a

y
 2

0
0
8

.)
 

 
   

409



 
- 
2
 -
 

T
a
b
le
 1
: 
S
c
h
e
m
e
s
 i
n
 p
la
c
e
 

ID
 

D
a
te
 

R
e
c
e
iv
e
d
 

A
m
o
u
n
t 

L
o
c
a
ti
o
n
 

W
h
a
t 
th
e
 m

o
n
e
y
 w
il
l 
b
e
 s
p
e
n
t 

o
n
 

W
h
e
n
 i
t 
is
 

p
la
n
n
e
d
 

to
 s
p
e
n
d
 

th
e
 

m
o
n
e
y
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
 

re
s
p
o
n
s
ib
le
 

E
x
p
ir
y
 

D
a
te
 (
if
 

a
n
y
) 

3
 

2
0
/0

1
/2

0
0
7
 

£
3
,3

3
3
 

S
t 

Iv
e
s
 

H
ill

 R
is

e
 P

a
rk

 P
ro

je
c
t 
P

la
y
 

E
q

u
ip

m
e
n
t 
(N

.B
. 
a
n
 a

d
d
it
io

n
a
l 

£
1
,9

5
7
 a

p
p
e
a
rs

 i
n
 T

a
b
le

 2
: 

M
a

in
te

n
a
n
c
e
, 
to

 b
e
 t
ra

n
s
fe

rr
e
d
 t
o
 

S
t 

Iv
e
s
 T

o
w

n
 C

o
u
n
c
il)

 
2
0
0
8
 

O
p
e
ra

ti
o
n
s
 

 

2
5
 

0
3
/1

1
/1

9
9
7
 

£
2
6
,2

6
2
 

H
u
n
ti
n
g

d
o
n
 

C
o
n
e
y
g

e
a
r 

P
a
rk

 P
ro

je
c
t 
P

la
y
 

E
q

u
ip

m
e
n
t 

2
0
0
8
 

O
p
e
ra

ti
o
n
s
 

 

6
6
 

2
8
/0

8
/2

0
0
2
 

£
1
9
,8

9
7
 

E
y
n
e
s
b
u
ry

 

C
o
n
e
y
g

e
a
r 

P
a
rk

/H
e
n
b
ro

o
k
 P

a
rk

: 
p
ro

v
is

io
n
 a

n
d
/o

r 
m

a
in

te
n
a
n
c
e
 o

f 
o
p
e
n
 s

p
a
c
e
 a

n
d
 p

la
y
 e

q
u
ip

m
e
n
t 

2
0
0
8
 

O
p
e
ra

ti
o
n
s
 

 

7
5
 

0
2
/0

6
/2

0
0
4
 

£
2
,7

1
9
 

H
u
n
ti
n
g

d
o
n
 

 B
u
s
 s

h
e
lt
e
r:

 £
2
,7

1
9
 

2
0
0
8
 

T
ra

n
s
p
o
rt

 
 

7
5
 

0
9
/0

5
/2

0
0
7
 

£
6
1
,4

1
9
 

H
u
n
ti
n
g

d
o
n
 

O
ff

-s
it
e
 F

a
c
ili

ti
e
s
 C

o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
o
n
: 

p
ro

v
is

io
n
 a

n
d
/o

r 
m

a
in

te
n
a
n
c
e
 o

f 
p
u
b
lic

 o
p
e
n
 s

p
a
c
e
 a

n
d
/o

r 
re

c
re

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
fa

c
ili

ti
e
s
. 

(M
o
n
e

y
 t

o
 b

e
 t
ra

n
s
fe

rr
e
d
 t

o
 

H
u
n
ti
n
g

d
o
n
 T

C
 i
n
 r

e
s
p
e
c
t 

o
f 

S
tu

k
e
le

y
 M

e
a
d
o

w
s
 s

k
a
te

 p
a
rk

: 
£
2
1
,0

8
9
 c

a
p
it
a
l;
 £

4
0
,3

3
1
 

m
a
in

te
n
a
n
c
e
).

 
2
0
0
8
 

O
p
e
ra

ti
o
n
s
 

 

8
7
 

3
0
/0

7
/2

0
0
7
 

£
1
6
,9

8
0
 

H
u
n
ti
n
g

d
o
n
 

S
e
c
o
n
d
 h

a
lf
 o

f 
S

u
s
ta

in
a
b
le

 
T

ra
n
s
p
o
rt

 C
o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
o
n
  

 
T

ra
n
s
p
o
rt

 
 

9
5
 

2
8
/0

8
/2

0
0
2
 

£
7
,5

0
7
 

A
lc

o
n
b
u
ry

 W
e
s
to

n
 

T
ra

n
s
p
o
rt

 C
o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
o
n
: 
b
u
s
 

s
h
e
lt
e
r 

c
o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
o
n
 (

w
o
rk

s
 d

u
e
 t
o
 

c
o
m

m
e
n
c
e
 o

n
 s

it
e
 M

a
rc

h
/A

p
ri
l 

2
0
0
8
).

 
2
0
0
8
 

T
ra

n
s
p
o
rt

a
ti
o
n
 

 

1
0
3
 

1
6
/0

6
/2

0
0
5
 

£
5
1
,5

0
2
 

E
y
n
e
s
b
u
ry

 

O
n
-s

it
e
 F

a
c
ili

ti
e
s
 C

o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
o
n
: 
to

 
b
e
 s

p
e
n
t 
o
n
 L

o
c
a
l 
P

la
y
 A

re
a
 o

n
 

s
it
e
 (

C
o
u
n
tr

y
s
id

e
 p

ro
je

c
ts

) 
2
0
0
8
 

O
p
e
ra

ti
o
n
s
 

1
6
/0

6
/2

0
1
0
 

1
0
3
 

1
6
/0

6
/2

0
0
5
 

£
2
0
0
,4

1
5
 

E
y
n
e
s
b
u
ry

 
P

la
y
in

g
 f

ie
ld

 c
o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
o
n
 

2
0
0
8
 

L
e
is

u
re

 
1
6
/0

6
/2

0
1
0
 

1
9
2
 

2
7
/0

5
/2

0
0
3
 

£
1
1
,8

9
7
 

S
o
m

e
rs

h
a
m

 
O

n
-s

it
e
 F

a
c
ili

ti
e
s
 C

o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
o
n
: 

p
ro

v
is

io
n
 o

f 
c
a
s
u
a
l 
&

 e
q
u
ip

p
e
d
 

2
0
0
8
/2

0
0
9
 

O
p
e
ra

ti
o
n
s
 

 

410



 
- 
3
 -
 

p
la

y
 s

p
a
c
e
; 

th
is

 m
o
n
e
y
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 

a
llo

c
a
te

d
 t

o
 t

h
e
 r

e
d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
o
f 

 
th

e
 s

k
a
te

 p
a
rk

 i
n
 S

o
m

e
rs

h
a
m

. 

1
9
9
 

2
7
/1

1
/2

0
0
3
 

£
1
3
,8

9
8
 

G
o
d
m

a
n
c
h
e
s
te

r 
O

ff
-s

it
e
 F

a
c
ili

ti
e
s
 C

o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
o
n
: 

S
t.
 

J
u
d
it
h
’s

 F
ie

ld
 S

k
a
te

b
o
a
rd

 R
a
m

p
 

2
0
0
7
/2

0
0
8
 

O
p
e
ra

ti
o
n
s
 

 

2
0
5
  

2
1
/1

1
/2

0
0
7
 

£
1
5
,7

5
8
 

H
u
n
ti
n
g

d
o
n
 

O
ff

-s
it
e
 F

a
c
ili

ti
e
s
 C

o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
o
n
: 

P
ro

v
is

io
n
 &

 M
a

in
te

n
a
n
c
e
 o

f 
O

p
e
n
 

S
p
a
c
e
 a

n
d
 P

la
y
 E

q
u
ip

m
e
n
t 

o
ff

 
s
it
e
 i
n
 t
h
e
 a

re
a
 o

f 
H

u
n
ti
n
g

d
o
n
; 

p
ro

p
o
s
a
l 
s
u
b
m

it
te

d
 f
o
r 

s
p
e
n
d
 a

t 
H

in
c
h
in

g
b
ro

o
k
e
 P

a
rk

 
2
0
0
8
/2

0
0
9
 

O
p
e
ra

ti
o
n
s
 

 

2
0
6
 

1
7
/0

7
/2

0
0
7
 

£
8
,0

4
3
 

Y
a
x
le

y
 

O
ff

 s
it
e
 r

e
c
re

a
ti
o
n
 F

a
c
ili

ti
e
s
 

C
o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
o
n
 

 
O

p
e
ra

ti
o
n
s
 

 

2
1
1
 

2
2
/0

9
/2

0
0
5
 

£
1
4
,9

4
8
 

Y
a
x
le

y
 

O
ff

-s
it
e
 F

a
c
ili

ti
e
s
 C

o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
o
n
: 

re
d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

p
la

y
in

g
 f

ie
ld

 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 s

k
a
te

 p
a
rk

 
 

O
p
e
ra

ti
o
n
s
 

 

2
1
2
 

9
/1

0
/2

0
0
6
 

£
2
9
,6

1
4
 

Y
a
x
le

y
 (

la
n
d
 n

o
rt

h
 o

f 
B

ro
a
d
w

a
y
) 

O
ff

-s
it
e
 F

a
c
ili

ti
e
s
 C

o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
o
n
: 

re
d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

p
la

y
in

g
 f

ie
ld

 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 s

k
a
te

 p
a
rk

 
 

O
p
e
ra

ti
o
n
s
 

 

2
1
5
 

2
3
/1

0
/2

0
0
6
 

£
1
0
,4

0
5
 

H
u
n
ti
n
g

d
o
n
/G

o
d
m

a
n
c
h
e
s
te

r 

O
ff

-s
it
e
 F

a
c
ili

ti
e
s
 C

o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
o
n
: 

fo
r 

th
e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
 o

f 
p
u
b
lic

 o
p
e
n
 

s
p
a
c
e
, 
re

c
re

a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 l
e
is

u
re

 
fa

c
ili

ti
e
s
 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 y

o
u
th

 s
h
e
lt
e
r 

(p
le

a
s
e
 a

ls
o
 s

e
e
 T

a
b
le

 3
) 

2
0
0
8
/2

0
0
9
 

O
p
e
ra

ti
o
n
s
 

1
3
/1

0
/2

0
1
3
 

2
4
7
 

3
0
/0

1
/2

0
0
7
 

£
1
4
,8

1
8
 

H
u
n
ti
n
g

d
o
n
 

P
la

y
 A

re
a
 C

o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
o
n
: 
P

ro
p
o
s
a
l 

s
u
b
m

it
te

d
 f
o
r 

s
p
e
n
d
 a

t 
H

in
c
h
in

g
b
ro

o
k
e
 P

a
rk
 

2
0
0
8
/2

0
0
9
 

O
p
e
ra

ti
o
n
s
 

 

2
4
8
 

2
7
/0

7
/2

0
0
7
 

£
2
8
,7

8
6
 

B
ra

m
p
to

n
 

O
p
e
n
 S

p
a
c
e
 C

o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
o
n
  

 

  
O

p
e
ra

ti
o
n
s
 

 

2
5
7
 

3
1
/0

1
/2

0
0
7
 

£
1
6
,2

8
9
 

S
o
m

e
rs

h
a
m

 

P
la

y
 A

re
a
 C

o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
o
n
: 
a
llo

c
a
te

d
 

to
 t
h
e
 r

e
d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

o
f 
th

e
 s

k
a
te

 
p
a
rk

 i
n
 S

o
m

e
rs

h
a
m

 
2
0
0
8
/2

0
0
9
 

O
p
e
ra

ti
o
n
s
 

 

2
6
6
 

0
3
/0

4
/2

0
0
8
 

£
2
7
,8

0
0
 

H
u
n
ti
n
g

d
o
n
 

P
u
b
lic

 O
p
e
n
 S

p
a
c
e
 c

o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
o
n
 

 
 

 

T
o
ta
l 

 
£
5
8
2
,2
9
0
 

 
 

 
 

 

L
a
s
t 
q

u
a
rt

e
r 

 
£
2
6
7
,2

2
5
 

 
 

 
 

 

  

411



 
- 
4
 -
 

 T
a
b
le
 2
: 
M
a
in
te
n
a
n
c
e
 

ID
 

D
a
te
 

R
e
c
e
iv
e
d
 

A
m
o
u
n
t 

L
o
c
a
ti
o
n
 

W
h
a
t 
th
e
 m

o
n
e
y
 h
a
s
 t
o
 b
e
 s
p
e
n
t 
o
n
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
 

re
s
p
o
n
s
ib
le
 

3
 

2
0
/0

1
/2

0
0
7
 

£
1
,9

5
7
 

S
t 

Iv
e
s
 

P
la

y
 A

re
a
 M

a
in

te
n
a
n
c
e
 

O
p
e
ra

ti
o
n
s
 

5
6
 

0
8
/0

2
/2

0
0
0
 

£
2
7
,4

5
7
 

S
t 

Iv
e
s
 

O
p
e
n
 S

p
a
c
e
 M

a
in

te
n
a
n
c
e
 

O
p
e
ra

ti
o
n
s
 

7
9
 

0
3
/0

2
/2

0
0
6
 

£
3
6
,3

5
7
 

B
u
c
k
d
e
n
 

O
p
e
n
 S

p
a
c
e
 M

a
in

te
n
a
n
c
e
 

O
p
e
ra

ti
o
n
s
 

1
0
3
 

0
6
/1

2
/2

0
0
6
 

£
5
,8

2
6
 

E
y
n
e
s
b
u
ry

 
P

la
y
 A

re
a
 M

a
in

te
n
a
n
c
e
 

O
p
e

ra
ti
o
n
s
 

1
8
1
 

1
5
/0

6
/2

0
0
6
 

£
3
,7

9
2
 

S
t 

Iv
e
s
 

O
p
e
n
 S

p
a
c
e
 M

a
in

te
n
a
n
c
e
 

O
p
e
ra

ti
o
n
s
 

1
9
4
 

0
3
/0

2
/2

0
0
4
 

£
8
,3

5
8
 

R
a
m

s
e
y
 S

t 
M

a
ry

s
 

O
p
e
n
 S

p
a
c
e
 M

a
in

te
n
a
n

c
e
 

O
p
e
ra

ti
o
n
s
 

T
o
ta
l 

 
£
8
1
,0
4
8
 

 
 

 

L
a
s
t 
q

u
a
rt

e
r 

 
£
8
0
,7

6
9
 

 
 

 

    T
a
b
le
 3
. 
U
n
a
ll
o
c
a
te
d
 

ID
 

D
a
te
 

R
e
c
e
iv
e
d
 

A
m
o
u
n
t 

L
o
c
a
ti
o
n
 

W
h
a
t 
th
e
 m

o
n
e
y
 c
a
n
 b
e
 s
p
e
n
t 
o
n
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
 

re
s
p
o
n
s
ib
le
 

E
x
p
ir
y
 

D
a
te
 (
if
 

a
n
y
) 

6
9
 

0
7
/0

9
/2

0
0
5
 

£
2
1
,3

8
8
 

S
t 

Iv
e
s
 

R
e
c
re

a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 L

e
is

u
re

 F
a
c
ili

ti
e
s
 

C
o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
o
n
 o

ff
-s

it
e
 w

it
h
in

 S
t 
Iv

e
s
. 
In

 
d
is

c
u
s
s
io

n
s
 w

it
h
 S

t 
Iv

e
s
 T

C
 r

e
g

a
rd

in
g
 

p
o
te

n
ti
a
l 
s
c
h
e
m

e
s
. 

O
p
e
ra

ti
o
n
s
 

7
/0

9
/2

0
1
0
 

9
3
 

2
1
/1

2
/2

0
0
6
 

£
1
0
,6

1
4
 

F
a
rc

e
t 

O
ff

-s
it
e
 f
a
c
ili

ti
e
s
 c

o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
o
n
: 

p
ro

v
is

io
n
 a

n
d
 

m
a
in

te
n
a
n
c
e
 o

f 
c
h
ild

re
n
’s

 a
n
d
 y

o
u
th

/a
d
u
lt
 

o
p
e
n
 s

p
a
c
e
 a

n
d
 p

la
y
 e

q
u
ip

m
e
n
t.
 F

a
rc

e
t 

P
a
ri
s
h
 C

o
u
n
c
il/

O
p
e
ra

ti
o
n
s
 D

iv
is

io
n
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
in

g
 a

 s
c
h
e
m

e
. 

O
p
e
ra

ti
o
n
s
 

2
1
/1

2
/2

0
1
6
 

1
1
3
  

2
1
/1

1
/2

0
0
7
 

£
1
1
,0

1
9
 

B
ra

m
p
to

n
 

O
ff

-s
it
e
 F

a
c
ili

ti
e
s
 C

o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
o
n
: 

le
is

u
re

 a
n
d
 

re
c
re

a
ti
o
n
 f

a
c
ili

ti
e
s
 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 o

p
e
n
 s

p
a
c
e
 &

 
p
la

y
 e

q
u
ip

m
e
n
t 

O
p
e
ra

ti
o
n
s
 

 

1
9
7
 

2
9
/0

9
/2

0
0
5
 

£
1
1
,5

6
8
 

F
e
n
s
ta

n
to

n
 

O
ff

-s
it
e
 F

a
c
ili

ti
e
s
 C

o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
o
n
: 

p
ro

v
is

io
n
 

a
n
d
/o

r 
m

a
in

te
n
a
n
c
e
 o

f 
p
la

y
 s

p
a
c
e
 i
n
 

F
e
n
s
ta

n
to

n
 (

a
w

a
it
in

g
 p

ro
p
o
s
a
ls

 f
ro

m
 P

C
).
 

O
p
e
ra

ti
o
n
s
 

2
9
/0

9
/2

0
1
0
 

2
1
5
 

2
3
/1

0
/2

0
0
6
 

£
1
0
,4

0
5
 

H
u
n
ti
n
g

d
o
n
/G

o
d
m

a
n
c
h
e
s
te

r 

O
ff

-s
it
e
 F

a
c
ili

ti
e
s
 C

o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
o
n
: 

fo
r 

th
e
 

p
ro

v
is

io
n
 o

f 
p
u
b
lic

 o
p
e
n
 s

p
a
c
e
, 
re

c
re

a
ti
o
n
 

a
n
d
 l
e
is

u
re

 f
a
c
ili

ti
e
s
 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 y

o
u
th

 s
h
e
lt
e
r 

 
O

p
e
ra

ti
o
n
s
 

2
0
0
8
/2

0
0
9
 

412



 
- 
5
 -
 

2
1
6
  

0
8
/0

3
/2

0
0
7
 

£
1
0
,4

9
1
 

S
t 

N
e
o
ts

 

O
ff

-s
it
e
 F

a
c
ili

ti
e
s
 C

o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
o
n
: 

p
ro

v
is

io
n
 o

f 
c
h
ild

re
n
 o

r 
a
d
u
lt
/y

o
u
th

 o
p
e
n
 s

p
a
c
e
 a

n
d
 

p
la

y
 e

q
u
ip

m
e
n
t 
(a

w
a
it
in

g
 p

ro
p
o
s
a
l 
fr

o
m

 
T

o
w

n
 C

o
u
n
c
il)

. 
O

p
e
ra

ti
o
n
s
 

 

2
2
4
  

1
8
/1

0
/2

0
0
7
 

£
1
6
,4

5
9
 

R
a
m

s
e
y
 

O
ff

-s
it
e
 f
a
c
ili

ti
e
s
: 
O

p
e
n
s
 s

p
a
c
e
, 
re

c
re

a
ti
o
n
 

a
n
d
 l
e
is

u
re

 f
a
c
ili

ti
e
s
  

O
p
e
ra

ti
o
n
s
 

 

2
2
9
 

2
8
/0

1
/0

8
 

£
1
1
,8

5
0
 

S
t 

N
e
o
ts

 
L
e
is

u
re

 a
n
d
 R

e
c
re

a
ti
o
n
 f
a
c
ili

ti
e
s
 

c
o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
o
n
 

O
p
e
ra

ti
o
n
s
 

 

2
2
9
 

2
8
/0

1
/0

8
 

£
9
,0

2
0
 

S
t 

N
e
o
ts

 
L
e
is

u
re

 a
n
d
 R

e
c
re

a
ti
o
n
 f
a
c
ili

ti
e
s
 

c
o
m

p
e
n
s
a
ti
o
n
 p

a
y
m

e
n
t 
to

 C
o
u
n
c
il 

O
p
e
ra

ti
o
n
s
 

 

2
3
5
  

2
3
/1

0
/2

0
0
7
 

£
1
1
,0

0
2
  

C
o
ln

e
 

O
ff

-s
it
e
 f
a
c
ili

ti
e
s
: 

P
ro

v
is

io
n
 a

n
d
/o

r 
m

a
in

te
n
a
n
c
e
 o

f 
c
h
ild

re
n
’s

 e
q

u
ip

p
e
d
 a

re
a
 o

r 
o
th

e
r 

re
c
re

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
fa

c
ili

ti
e
s
 (

a
w

a
it
in

g
 

p
ro

p
o
s
a
ls

 f
ro

m
 P

a
ri
s
h
 C

o
u
n
c
il)

. 
O

p
e
ra

ti
o
n
s
 

 

T
o
ta
l 

 
£
1
2
3
,8
1
6
 

 
 

 
 

L
a
s
t 
q

u
a
rt

e
r 

 
£
1
8
6
,2

6
6
 

 
 

 
 

413



 
- 
6
 -
 

T
a
b
le
 4
. 
M
o
n
e
y
 s
p
e
n
t 
o
r 
tr
a
n
s
fe
rr
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 l
a
s
t 
q
u
a
rt
e
r 

 

ID
 

D
a
te

 
re

c
e
iv

e
d
 

A
m

o
u

n
t 

  
  

  
  

  
 

£
 

L
o
c
a
ti

o
n
 

S
p
e
n
d
 t

y
p

e
 

D
iv

is
io

n
 

2
8

 
1
1
/
0
7
/
2
0
0
7
 

2
1
,0
4
3
 

H
a
rt
fo
rd
, 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

F
a
lc
o
n
 D
ri
v
e
 

P
la
y
 E
q
u
ip
m
e
n
t 

O
p
e
ra
ti
o
n
s 

4
0

 
1
6
/
0
1
/
2
0
0
1
 

4
,2
5
5
 

E
a
st
 F
o
rd
, 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

C
ro
ss
h
a
ll
 R
o
a
d
 

S
h
e
lt
e
re
d
 H
o
u
si
n
g
 

A
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
: 
O
p
e
n
 S
p
a
c
e
 

O
p
e
ra
ti
o
n
s 

1
8

8
 
1
4
/
0
7
/
2
0
0
3
 

1
0
,2
4
9
 

E
y
n
e
sb
u
ry
, 

H
a
rd
w
ic
k
 R
o
a
d
  

P
la
y
 E
q
u
ip
m
e
n
t 

O
p
e
ra
ti
o
n
s 

1
9

4
 
0
3
/
0
2
/
2
0
0
4
 

8
,3
5
8
 

R
a
m
se
y
 S
t 
M
a
ry
s,
 

A
sh
b
e
a
c
h
 G
ro
v
e
 

H
o
u
si
n
g
 a
n
d
 P
la
y
 E
q
u
ip
 

(m
a
in
te
n
a
n
c
e
) 

O
p
e
ra
ti
o
n
s 

1
9

7
 
2
9
/
0
9
/
2
0
0
5
 

1
1
,5
6
8
 

F
e
n
st
a
n
to
n
 

P
ro
v
is
io
n
 a
n
d
 m
a
in
te
n
a
n
c
e
 o
f 

p
la
y
 e
q
u
ip
m
e
n
t 

O
p
e
ra
ti
o
n
s 

2
0

6
 
1
7
/
0
7
/
2
0
0
7
 

4
,5
9
0
 

Y
a
x
le
y
, 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

A
d
j 
1
5
9
 M
a
in
 

S
tr
e
e
t 
 

R
e
c
re
a
ti
o
n
 F
a
c
il
it
ie
s 
(Y
o
u
th
 

S
h
e
lt
e
r)
 

O
p
e
ra
ti
o
n
s 

 
T

o
ta

l 
6

0
,0

6
3

 
 

 
 

 
L
a
st
 q
u
a
rt
e
r 

5
9
7
,3
9
4
 

 
 

 

 

414



Appendix B - Future S106 Benefits Listed by Location - developments commenced

This report shows Section 106 clauses with attached monies from developments that have commenced but where trigger points for the collection
of the monies have not yet been reached.

Spend Area ID Address (Line 2) Spend Type Clause Amount

(!)

Spending Department

33 Off Caxton Road !1,395
Alconbury Wes 204 Vinegar Hill/Hamerton Road Education Contribution !10,000 CCC Education
Bury 82 Bury Road Open Space Maintenance !8,000 Operations
Eynesbury 103 Barford Road On-site Facilities Contribution !10,000 Operations
Farcet 93 Cross Street Highways Contribution !15,000 CCC Transportation
Fenstanton 173 Headlands Open Space Maintenance !5,679 Operations
Godmancheste 199 Roman Way Open Space Contribution !4,500 Operations

Roman Way Play Area Contribution !8,000 Operations
244 London Road Play Area Maintenance !25,000 Operations
261 Wigmore Farm Silver Street Open Space Contribution !75,500 Operations

Wigmore Farm Silver Street Play Area Maintenance !8,000 Operations
Wigmore Farm Silver Street Play Area Maintenance !12,000 Operations
Wigmore Farm Silver Street On-site Facilities Maintenance !31,125 Operations
Wigmore Farm Silver Street Education contribution 1.part !128,000 CCC Education
Wigmore Farm Silver Street Education contribution 2.part !128,000 CCC Education
Wigmore Farm Silver Street Transport Contribution 1.part !82,000 CCC Transportation
Wigmore Farm Silver Street Transport Contribution 2.part !82,000 CCC Transportation
Wigmore Farm Silver Street Primary Health Care Contribution !39,770 CCC

Great Gransde 33 Off Caxton Road Open Space Maintenance !12,250 Operations
Houghton & W 256 Thicket Road Recreation Facilities Contribution !16,000 Operations

Thicket Road Transport Contribution !8,000 CCC Transportation
Huntingdon 75 Kings Ripton Road Open Space Maintenance !6,120 Operations

Kings Ripton Road On-site Facilities Maintenance !19,000 Operations
186 Hinchingbrooke Park Road Open Space Maintenance !37,000 Operations

Hinchingbrooke Park Road On-site Facilities Maintenance !27,000 Operations
218 Parkway Open Space Maintenance !36,000 Operations

Parkway Play Area Maintenance !9,500 Operations
220 Ullswater and Handscroft Lane Play Area Maintenance !9,500 Operations

Ullswater and Handscroft Lane Play Area Contribution !36,000 Operations
Ullswater and Handscroft Lane Off-site Facilities Maintenance !5,000 Operations
Ullswater and Handscroft Lane Education Contribution !120,000 CCC Education

258 Hartford Road Transport Contribution !50,000 CCC Transportaion
260 St Peter's Road Cycle Paths !98,000 CCC Transportation

Huntingdonshir 244 London Road Transport Contribution !248,000 CCC Transportation
256 Thicket Road Affordable Housing Contribution !142,791 Housing

Little Paxton 223 Mill Lane !908,500

Note: The majority of transportation contributions are paid to Cambridgeshire County Council and are used in partnership with the district council.

4
1
5



Appendix B - Future S106 Benefits Listed by Location - developments commenced

This report shows Section 106 clauses with attached monies from developments that have commenced but where trigger points for the collection
of the monies have not yet been reached.

Spend Area ID Address (Line 2) Spend Type Clause Amount

(!)

Spending Department

Sawtry 180 Gidding Road, Play Area Contribution !16,700 Operations
St Ives 225 Park Avenue Education Contribution !17,000 CCC Education

228 Burleigh Road Off-site Facilities Contribution !30,040 Operations
Burleigh Road Open Space Contribution !12,650 Operations

St Neots 40 Crosshall Road On-site Facilities Maintenance !20,000 Operations
223 Mill Lane Transport Contribution 1.part !221,500 CCC Transportation

Mill Lane Transport Contribution 2.part !221,500 CCC Transportation
229 Bushmead Road Play Area Maintenance !8,000 Operations

Bushmead Road Amenity Strip Maintenance !7,200 Operations
237 Cambridge Road Education Contribution !100,000 CCC Education

Cambridge Road Education Contribution !100,000 CCC Education
Cambridge Road Education Contribution !625,000 CCC Education
Cambridge Road Education Contribution !625,000 CCC Education
Cambridge Road Education Contribution !625,000 CCC Education
Cambridge Road Education Contribution !625,000 CCC Education
Cambridge Road Education Contribution !1,100,000 CCC Education
Cambridge Road Education Contribution !1,100,000 CCC Education
Cambridge Road Education Contribution !70,000 CCC Education
Cambridge Road On-site Facilities Contribution !300,000 Community Initiatives
Cambridge Road On-site Facilities Contribution !10,000 Community Initiatives
Cambridge Road On-site Facilities Contribution !138,000 Operations
Cambridge Road Play Area Contribution !120,000 Operations
Cambridge Road Play Area Contribution !78,000 Operations
Cambridge Road Play Area Contribution !46,800 Operations
Cambridge Road Play Area Contribution !17,000 Operations
Cambridge Road Transport Contribution !1,500,000 CCC Transportation
Cambridge Road Transport Contribution !515,000 CCC Transportation
Cambridge Road Transport Contribution !36,000 CCC Transportation
Cambridge Road Transport Contribution !2,010,000 CCC Transportation
Cambridge Road Transport Contribution !100,000 CCC Transportation
Cambridge Road Transport Contribution !100,000 CCC Transportation
Cambridge Road Transport Contribution !100,000 CCC Transportation
Cambridge Road Transport Contribution !50,000 CCC Transportation
Cambridge Road Transport Contribution !1,100,000 CCC Transportation
Cambridge Road Transport Contribution !150,000 CCC Transportation
Cambridge Road Transport Contribution !630,000 CCC Transportation

Note: The majority of transportation contributions are paid to Cambridgeshire County Council and are used in partnership with the district council.

4
1
6



Appendix B - Future S106 Benefits Listed by Location - developments commenced

This report shows Section 106 clauses with attached monies from developments that have commenced but where trigger points for the collection
of the monies have not yet been reached.

Spend Area ID Address (Line 2) Spend Type Clause Amount

(!)

Spending Department

Cambridge Road Education Contribution !50,000 CCC Education
Warboys 174 Popes Lane Open Space Maintenance !1,043 Operations

210 off High Fen Straight Drove Environmental conservation contributi !10,000 Trust Fund
217 Poplar Farm Open Space Maintenance !1,206 Operations

Yaxley 187 Broadway Open Space Maintenance !54,000 Operations
206 Main Street Education Contribution !54,000 CCC Education
212 Broadway Play Area Maintenance !29,000 Operations

Broadway Open Space Contribution !22,100 Operations
Broadway Highways Contribution !97,000 CCC Highways

252 Church Street On-site Facilities Maintenance !36,000 Operations
Church Street On-site Facilities Maintenance !8,300 Operations
Church Street On-site Facilities Maintenance !25,000 Operations
Church Street Off-site Facilities Contribution !13,000 Operations
Church Street Education Contribution !264,000 CCC Education
Church Street Education Contribution !264,000 CCC Education
Church Street Transport Contribution !175,000 CCC Transportation

Grand Total !16,091,669

Note: The majority of transportation contributions are paid to Cambridgeshire County Council and are used in partnership with the district council.

4
1
7



4
1
8

T
h

is
 p

a
g
e

 is
 in

te
n
tio

n
a
lly

 le
ft b

la
n
k



Appendix C - Future Potential S106 Benefits Listed by Location - developments not commenced
This report shows Section 106 clauses with attached monies from developments that have not yet commenced work.

Location ID Address Spend Type Amount
Expected (!)

Service Responsible

Abbotsley 200 Rectory Road Education Contribution !21,000 CCC Education
Bluntisham 200 Rectory Road Off-site Facilities Contribution !13,100 Operations
Colne 203 East Street Recreation Facilities Contribution !13,000 Operations

East Street Education Contribution !24,000 CCC Education
Hemingford Grey 262 London Road Play Area Contribution !8,000 Operations

London Road Off-site Facilities Contribution !6,500 Operations
London Road Play Area Maintenance !16,000 Operations

Huntingdon 113 32 High Street Education Contribution !14,000 CCC Education
230 Thames Road Off-site Facilities Contribution !11,040 Operations

Thames Road Play Area Maintenance !6,180 Operations
Thames Road Off-site Facilities Contribution !48,600 Operations
Thames Road Open Space Maintenance !40,170 Operations

233 Bus Depot Site 15 Stukeley Rd Education Contribution !14,000 CCC Education
251 Lancaster House Transport Contribution !13,750 CCC Transportation
265 Brampton Road Transport Contribution !40,000 CCC Transportation

Little Paxton 222 Bydand Lane & rear of Park Crescent Primary Health Care Contribution !14,000 Huntingdonshire PCT
Bydand Lane & rear of Park Crescent Education Contribution !4,450 CCC Education
Bydand Lane & rear of Park Crescent Off-site Facilities Contribution !16,100 Operations

Needingworth 208 Priory Road Education Contribution !22,000 CCC Education
Ramsey 226 Bury Road Off-site Facilities Contribution !13,400 Operations

Bury Road Transport Contribution !7,000 HDC Transportation
243 117A Herne Road Affordable Housing Contribution !74,520 Housing

117A Herne Road Recreation Facilities Contribution !15,450 Operations
117A Herne Road Transport Contribution !6,000 CCC Transportation
117A Herne Road Education Contribution !1,750 CCC Education

St Ives 175 Station Road/New Road, Transport Contribution !30,000 HDC Transportation
209 Meadow Lane Open Space Maintenance !20,000 Operations

Meadow Lane Highways Contribution !35,000 CCC Transportation
239 Houghton Grange Play Area Contribution !72,000 Operations

Houghton Grange Play Area Maintenance !23,000 Operations
Houghton Grange Transport Contribution !59,396 CCC Transportation
Houghton Grange Transport Contribution !44,547 CCC Transportation
Houghton Grange Transport Contribution !44,547 CCC Transportation
Houghton Grange Transport Contribution !10,000 CCC Transportation
Houghton Grange Transport Contribution !65,000 HDC Transportation

Note: The majority of transportation contributions are paid to Cambridgeshire County Council and are used in partnership with the district council. 1

4
1
9



Appendix C - Future Potential S106 Benefits Listed by Location - developments not commenced
This report shows Section 106 clauses with attached monies from developments that have not yet commenced work.

Location ID Address Spend Type Amount
Expected (!)

Service Responsible

Houghton Grange Primary Health Care Contribution !18,126 Policy and Str. Service
242 Houghton Road Play Area Contribution !80,000 Operations

Houghton Road Play Area Maintenance !25,000 Operations
Houghton Road Transport Contribution !84,360 CCC Transportation
Houghton Road Transport Contribution !63,270 CCC Transportation
Houghton Road Transport Contribution !63,270 CCC Transportation
Houghton Road Transport Contribution !10,000 CCC Transportation
Houghton Road Transport Contribution !30,000 CCC Transportation
Houghton Road Transport Contribution !50,000 CCC Transportation
Houghton Road Primary Health Care Contribution !21,952 Policy and Str. Service
Houghton Road Transport Contribution !50,000 CCC Transportation

254 Orchard House Houghton Road Play Area Maintenance !72,000 Operations
Orchard House Houghton Road Transport Contribution !184,184 CCC Transportation
Orchard House Houghton Road Transport Contribution !160,000 CCC Transportation
Orchard House Houghton Road Transport Contribution !80,352 CCC Transportation
Orchard House Houghton Road Primary Health Care Contribution !19,132 Policy and Str. Service

264 East Street Play Equipment Contribution !22,000 Operations
East Street Education Contribution !33,400 CCC Education

St Neots 201 Colmworth Brook And Highways Contribution !120,000 CCC Transportation
231 Huntingdon Street Off-site Facilities Contribution !29,000 Operations

Huntingdon Street Transport Contribution !42,840 CCC Transportation
Huntingdon Street Education Contribution !40,000 CCC Education

236 516 Great North Road Education Contribution !12,000 CCC Education
516 Great North Road Education Contribution !28,000 CCC Education
516 Great North Road Off-site Facilities Contribution !6,000 Operations
516 Great North Road Off-site Facilities Contribution !14,000 Operations
516 Great North Road Transport Contribution !6,000 CCC Transportation
516 Great North Road Transport Contribution !14,000 CCC Transportation

238 15 Church View Off-site Facilities Contribution !30,750 Operations
15 Church View Transport Contribution !60,000 CCC Transportation
15 Church View Education Contribution !14,000 CCC Education

241 Tesco Superstore Barford Rd Play Area Maintenance !5,000 Operations
Tesco Superstore Barford Rd Off-site Facilities Contribution !54,400 Operations
Tesco Superstore Barford Rd On-site Facilities Contribution !14,000 Operations
Tesco Superstore Barford Rd Education contribution 1.part !70,000 CCC Education

Note: The majority of transportation contributions are paid to Cambridgeshire County Council and are used in partnership with the district council. 2

4
2
0



Appendix C - Future Potential S106 Benefits Listed by Location - developments not commenced
This report shows Section 106 clauses with attached monies from developments that have not yet commenced work.

Location ID Address Spend Type Amount
Expected (!)

Service Responsible

Tesco Superstore Barford Rd Education contribution 2.part !70,000 CCC Education
Tesco Superstore Barford Rd Play Area Maintenance !5,500 Operations
Tesco Superstore Barford Rd Transport Contribution 1.part !178,000 CCC Transportation
Tesco Superstore Barford Rd Transport Contribution 2.part !178,000 CCC Transportation
Tesco Superstore Barford Rd Open Space Maintenance !9,000 Operations

Yaxley 195 Broadway Transport Contribution !12,000 HDC Transportation
Broadway Transport Contribution !8,000 HDC Transportation

Grand Total !2,955,036

Note: The majority of transportation contributions are paid to Cambridgeshire County Council and are used in partnership with the district council. 3

4
2
1



4
2
2

T
h

is
 p

a
g
e

 is
 in

te
n
tio

n
a
lly

 le
ft b

la
n
k



OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY                                               10th June 2008 
SERVICE SUPPORT  PANEL                                                                                          
    
 
   
 

PERFORMANCE MONITORING 
(Report by the Head of Policy and Strategic Services) 

 
1. INTRODUCTION 
 
1.1 The purpose of this report is to present to Members performance 

management information on “Growing Success” – the Council’s Corporate 
Plan 

 
2. BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
 
2.2 In January 2007 the Council adopted a revised Corporate Plan “Growing 

Success”.  The plan includes around 50 short, medium and long term 

objectives to help achieve aims and ambitions for Huntingdonshire’s 

communities and the Council itself. In addition the Council have identified a 

small number, 12, objectives which were considered to be a priority for the 

immediate future. 

3. Performance Management  

3.1 Progress against all 50 or so objectives are reported to Chief Officer 

Management Team quarterly on a service basis. A progress report from 

each Division includes performance data in the form of achievement 

against a target for each of the objectives that those services contributes 

towards and is supported by narrative on achievements and other issues or 

risks. 

 

3.2 Members of the Overview and Scrutiny Panel have an important role in the 

Council’s comprehensive Performance Management framework and the 

process of regular review of performance data has been established.  In 

adopting the updated version of Growing Success, and in particular in 

prioritising objectives, it was intended that members should concentrate 

their monitoring on a small number of objectives to enable them to take a 

strategic approach which in turn would build confidence that the Council 

priorities are being achieved.  Members can view all performance reports 

on the Councils intranet. 

Agenda Item 8

423



3.3 Members of the Overview and Scrutiny Panels may find broader 

performance information of help to them in undertaking their review and 

scrutiny functions.  This information can be provided on a regular or ad-hoc 

basis. 

3.4 Following discussion with the chairmen of the Panels the priority objectives 

have been allocated between Panels as follows: 

Service Support  Service Delivery  

To promote development 
opportunities in and around the 
market towns 

To lower carbon emissions   

To enhance public, community and 
specialist transport into and around 
the market towns 

To enable the provision of affordable 
housing  

To improve access to Council 
services 

To achieve a low level of 
homelessness  

To make our performance 
management more effective and 
transparent 

To promote healthy lifestyle choices  

To reduce the number of car journeys 
to work by employees 

 

To build the new operations centre 
and headquarters 

 

To be an employer people want to 
work for 

 

To re-balance saving and spending to 
ensure resources are available to 
achieve the Council’s priorities 

 

 

4 PERFORMANCE MONITORING 

 
The following performance data is appended for consideration: 

Annex A - a summary of achievements, issues and risks relating to the 

objectives identified by the Heads of Service 

Annex B - Performance data from services which contribute to the Council 

objectives.  For each measure there is a target, actual performance against 

target, forecast performance for the next period and a comments field.  The 

data is colour coded as follows: 

• green – achieving target or above; 

• amber – between target and an “intervention level (the level at which 

performance is considered to be unacceptable and action is required); 

• red – the intervention level or below; and 

• grey - data not unavailable 

 

424



5.  REVIEW OF GROWING SUCESSS 

The panel are reminded in line with the agreed process the annual review of 

Growing Success (objectives/targets etc) was intended so that an updated 

version could be presented to members by end of June.  However, the 

preparation of a new Sustainable Community Strategy (SCS) and Local Area 

Agreement (LAA) for Cambridgeshire presents an opportunity for the Council 

to examine our organisational objectives and targets so that we can 

demonstrate our contribution to these broader outcomes for the benefit of 

Huntingdonshire.  The timing of these documents mean the review of 

Growing Success will take place in late summer and be submitted to the 

Council in September.  It is proposed this will be adopted as the timetable for 

the review of Growing Success in future years as this provides a better fit 

with the Councils business planning, budget, MTP and service planning 

process. 

 

6. RECOMMENDATION 
 
6.1  Members are recommended to; 

Consider the results of performance for priority objectives and to comment to 
the cabinet as appropriate.  

 

 

BACKGROUND INFORMATION 

 
Performance Management reports produced from the Council’s CPMF software 
system 
 
Growing Success: Corporate Plan 
 
Contact 
Officer: 

Howard Thackray, Policy & Research Manager 

 (((( 01480 388035 

425



SERVICE SUPPORT (up to 31st March 2008)                                                                                                                         ANNEX A 
 

Objective   

Achievements: Draft Local Economy action plan has been developed. Marketing plan for Creative 
Enterprise Centre developed and service provider group set up to determine programme of 
training and activities for the Centre. Hosted Town Centre Study tour for neighbouring 
councils in the East Midlands Development Agency Area to share our best practice 

Issues: Delivery of Local Economy action plan dependent on external funding. Creative  Enterprise 
Centre activities dependent on partner involvement and funding opportunities 

To promote 
development 
opportunities in and 
around the market 
towns 

Risks: All Partners need to engage if delivery of strategy is to be successful 
Achievements: Sustainable Transport schemes (including the Market Town Transport strategies) are 

continuing to come to fruition including public transport initiatives being delivered, such as 
Huntingdon to St. Ives Bus priority measures and an updated car parking strategy and 
action plan to commence delivery from Summer 2008. Community Transport schemes 
continue to operate with coverage over the majority of the District 

Issues: CCC ability to adequately resource MTTS may impact upon the planned delivery of 
schemes. Community Transport schemes continue to be reliant on volunteer resources to 
deliver overall objectives 

To enhance public, 
community and 
specialist transport into 
and around the market 
towns 

Risks: Community Transport highly vulnerable to changes in funding streams and grant 
availability. Schemes tend to operate financially via a number of different sources. The loss 
of any one source and the inability to secure alternative funding leaves operational services 
at high risk of termination 

Achievements: The new customer services team has been established from 1st April and now include 
customer service centres, call centre, community information centres and tourist 
information.  The new team reports to Julia Barber, who’s job title has changed to Head of 
Customer Services.  This new team will start to develop plans to implement the 
requirements of the recently approved Customer Service Strategy. 

Issues:  

To improve access to 
Council services 

Risks:  
Achievements: All services entering data into Performance Management system. 

Issues: Timeliness of data entry necessary to feed into reporting cycle. 

To make our  
performance 
management more 
effective and 
transparent 

Risks: Failure to use performance management data could delay development of comprehensive 
performance management system and affect quality of decision making. 

Achievements: Continued involvement in Camshare, promotion of Cycle Scheme and introduction of pool 
car fleet has assisted in reducing car usage. Eastfield House site specific plan in place 

To reduce the number 
of car journeys to work 
by employees Issues: Providing officer time to promote travel plan issues and monitoring targets set within 

4
2
6



corporate and site specific plans 

Risks: Considerable officer time required to roll out site specific travel plans and to monitor and 
update those currently in place within the corporate plan  

Achievements: Construction work is on progress with the basic structure of Building C/D nearing 
completion.   Detailed planning for the relocation of staff into the new building is well 
advanced.  
A planning consent has been secured for the residential development of the site of the 
former Building A.  A marketing exercise has started and tenders for the purchase of the 
land are due for return in June 2008. 

Issues: Planning conditions relating to the external landscaping have not yet been discharged.  
Negotiations continue with the planners to achieve discharge before the construction 
programme is delayed. 

To build the new 
operations centre and 
headquarters 

Risks: Utilities have been ordered to reduce the risk of delay due to the companies’ failure to 
provide their services to programme.  
The national economy is reducing house sales and this may reduce interest in the 
residential land. 

Achievements: The numbers of applications received locally imply that we are well thought of as an 
employer. 

Issues: From staff survey June 07 - 71% Stated that “I am satisfied with Council as my employer” 

To be an employer 
people want to work for 

Risks: If HDC were not well thought of this would impact on number of application received and an 
increasing staff turnover 

Achievements: The Budget and MTP was approved by Council on the 20 February 2008. This produced a 
balanced budget for 2008/9 and reduced the ‘gap’ identified in future years budgets.  
We now anticipate achieving a small surplus in the revenue account for 2007/8. 

Issues: Over the course of the 2008 we will be working on how to address the £500,000 - £2m 
‘gap’ in the revenue budget which is currently apparent for 2009/10 – 2011/2 

To re-balance saving 
and spending to ensure 
resources are available 
to achieve the 
Council’s priorities 

Risks: We are unable to generate sufficient plans to generate new income or reduce expenditure 

 

4
2
7



 
 

SERVICE SUPPORT (up to 31st March 2008)                                                                                                                                    ANNEX B 

Community/Council Aim: A strong, diverse economy 

Objective: To promote development opportunities in and around the market towns 

Division: Policy and Strategic Services 

Divisional Objective: To promote development opportunities in and around the market towns 
Key Activity(s) only to deliver service objective: Key Measure: Target: Actual Forecast Comments: 

Review the Local Economy strategy & identify 
priorities 

% of LES actions/milestones on track 90 100 100 
 

QRT 

Divisional Objective: To support town centres to be economically viable and vibrant 

Key Activity(s) only to deliver service objective: Key Measure: Target: Actual Forecast Comments: 
Support the sustainable development of Town 
Centre Partnerships 

% of town centre projects on track as specified in 
their annual action plans 

90 100 100 
 

QRT 

Community/Council Aim: Access to Services and Transport 

Objective: To enhance public, community and specialist transport into and around the market towns 

Division: Planning 

Divisional  objective: To encourage more sustainable forms of transport 

Key Activity(s) only to deliver service objective: Key Measure: Target: Actual Forecast Comments: 

Develop car parking strategy 
To complete car parking strategy and develop Action 
plan for post – April 2008 delivery 

1 1 1  YRL 

Membership of Nene and Ouse community transport 850 850 850 
 

QRT Development of market town transport 
strategies (to set the policy 
framework)/Develop targeted proposals and 
initiatives (to encourage specific provision) 

More than 18.5% modal share for daily bus, cycle 
and pedestrian trips across all 4 market towns (Ave. 
Figure) 

18.5 19.5 18 

 

YRL 

Objective: To improve access to council services 

Division: IMD 

Divisional Objective: To review how customers can access Council Services and, if necessary, to deliver change projects as part of the customer First 
Programme. 
Key Activity(s) only to deliver service objective: Key Measure: Target: Actual Forecast Comments: 

Deliver elements of the temporary Customer 
Service Centre project as defined in the PID 

Progress towards review of the customer service 
strategy and implementation of authorised projects 
on target 

1 1 1 

1=on target IMD delivered against the 
project implementation document for 
the temp customer service centre on 
time and to budget. The revised 
customer service strategy was 
approved by Cabinet in Feb 08.  This 
measure will be removed from IMD 
scorecard. 

QRT 

Provide Access to Council Services Via the  Percentage of calls answered with 20 Seconds 80 81 80  QRT 

4
2
8



 
Call Centre and to deliver Phase 2 – Roll-out 
Services to call Centre (from late Autumn 
2007) 

Percentage of residents rate access to council 
services as good/excellent in the Council-wide 
annual survey  

70   Data will be available in due course YRL 

To implement and additional Kiosk in St Neots 
Progress towards the implementation of a temporary 
customer service centre and St Neots kiosk on 
target 

1 1  Implemented QRT 

Division: Revenue and Benefits 

Divisional Objective: To provide a prompt and effective service to customers 

Key Activity(s) only to deliver service objective: Key Measure: Target: Actual Forecast Comments: 

Average waiting time (in minutes) <5.00 4.2  
Average waiting time per customer 
per day over the qrt 

QRT 

Maximum waiting time (in minutes) <60.00 29  
Maximum waiting time any one person 
had to wait per day over the qrt 

QRT 
Dealing with callers at the CSC 

Number of visitors per quarter 13500 15682   QRT 

Division: Personnel 

Divisional Objective: To enable e-recruitment  

Key Activity(s) only to deliver service objective: Key Measure: Target: Actual Forecast Comments: 

Advertise posts via Cambs Jobs Portal 
Number of hits (opening and looking at post details) 
per post, per quarter 

80 0  

Data will be available in due course 
once the recruitment module in 
ResourceLink had been operational 
for 3 months 

QRT 

Resourcelink – Recruitment Module Project plan – implementation on track 1 1 1  QRT 

Community/Council Aim: To improve our systems and practices 

Objective: To build the new operations centre and headquarters 

Division: Technical Services 

Divisional Objective: Deliver Headquarters and other accommodation project ensuring buildings are completed to specification, on time and to budget  

Key Activity(s) only to deliver service objective: Key Measure: Target: Actual Forecast Comments: 
Ensure delivery proceeds in accordance with 
approves programme 

Unauthorised delay relative to items on critical path 
of approved development programme 

0 0 0  QRT 

Ensure developer complies with the council’s 
requirements 

Non-financial/timing disputes referred for expert 
adjudication 

0 0 0  QRT 

Ensure that variations are ordered only after 
additional funding has been approved 

Value of unfunded ordered variations 
0 0 0  QRT 

Objective: To make our performance management more effective and transparent 

Division: Policy and Strategic Services 

Divisional objective: To make our performance management effective and more transparent  

Key Activity(s) only to deliver service objective: Key Measure: Target: Actual Forecast Comments: 
Link all divisional reports to Council and 
Community objectives 

Reports available for COMT on monthly basis 1 1 1 1=on target reports produced monthly QRT 

Set up, maintain divisional reports/Ensure all 
appropriate data is entered into the system in 

Reports available for Members on a quarterly basis 1 1 1 1=on target reports produced monthly QRT 

4
2
9



time to produce management reports. 
Generate scheduled reports via Corvu 

Objective: To reduce the number of car journeys to work by employees 

Division: Technical Services 

Divisional objective: To reduce the number of car journeys to work by employees 

Key Activity(s) only to deliver service objective: Key Measure: Target: Actual Forecast Comments: 

Introduce site specific travel plans at each of 
the Councils main sites 

Reduce the % of employees who drive to work by 

sole use of car 
68 64 

64 (06/07 
annual 
survey) 

Data taken from the Annual Travel to 
Work survey published in December 
2007.   

QRT 

Community/Council Aim: To learn and develop 

Objective: To be and Employer People Wish to Work For 

Division: Personnel 

Divisional Objective: To create a culture via policies and procedures that attracts and retains staff 

Key Activity(s) only to deliver service objective: Key Measure: Target: Actual Forecast Comments: 

Policies and procedures that keep up to date 
with modern working patterns 

Biennial staff survey - % level of satisfaction 80 71  

From staff survey June 07 - 71% 
Stated that “I am satisfied with Council 
as my employer. Next survey due in 
2009 

YRL 

Recruitment package % of posts filled within one round of recruitment  90 94   QRT 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

4
3
0



 
  

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY PANEL 

(SERVICE SUPPORT)                 10
th
 JUNE 2008 

 

WORK PLAN:  STUDIES 

(Report by the Head of Administration) 
 

1. INTRODUCTION 

 
1.1 The purpose of this report is to allow Members of the Panel to review their 

programme of studies. 

 

2. STUDIES 

 
2.1 The Council has a duty to improve the social, environmental and economic 

well-being of the District.  This gives the Overview and Scrutiny Panels a wide 
remit to examine any issues that affect the District by conducting in-depth 
studies. 

 
2.2 Studies are allocated according to the Panels’ respective terms of reference. 

These are currently:- 
  

 Service Delivery:     Service Support: 
 
 Environment      Finance 
 Transport          Resources & Policy                            
 Leisure      Information Technology  
 Housing & Public Health    Planning Strategy 
 Operational & Countryside Services      
 
  

2.3 Ongoing studies have been allocated between the Panels accordingly -  
 
 

STUDY PANEL 

 

STATUS 

Cleaning Regimes in Town 
Centres 
 

Service Delivery  Report expected at 
July meeting. 

Processes and Procedures 
involved with the adoption of 
roads and sewers. 
 

Service Delivery Meeting held on 11
th
 

April 2008. Further 
meeting to be 
arranged. 

Traffic Enforcement 
 

Service Delivery Awaiting report 
following decision by 
AJC. 

The Processes Involved in 
Applying for Community 
Development Grant Aid and the 
Effectiveness of Grant 
Schemes. 

Service Delivery Investigations 
ongoing with officers. 
Another meeting to 
be arranged. 

Disability Access Service Delivery 
 

Representative from 
Hunts Forum to 
attend July meeting 
to discuss the issue 
of disability access. 

State of the District Consultation Service Delivery 
 

Report presented to 
Cabinet. Information 
sought on financial 
implications and a 
clearer link to be 
established to the 
Council’s 
Consultation and 
Engagement 
Strategy. Further 
report to be 
submitted to Cabinet. 
 

Agenda Item 9

431



  

Parish Charter for 
Huntingdonshire 

Service Support 
 

Meeting of Working 
Group to be held on 
2
nd
 June 2008. 

Heavy Goods Vehicle Service Support Final Report to be 
presented to June 
meeting. 

Section 106 Service Support First meeting held 
20

th
 May 2008. 

Further meetings 
being arranged. 

  
 

2.4        The Service Support Panel have also identified the following as future studies:- 
 
  

Internal Communication with 
Members 

Service Support 
 
 

Review of the Council’s Housing 
Needs Assessment Process 
 

Service Support 

Review of the incentives of the 
Council’s Travel Plan. 

Service Support 

 
 

2.5 The Service Delivery Panel have also identified the following as possible future 
studies:- 

 

Joint working between the three 
tiers of local government and the 
implications of the white paper 
 

Service Delivery 
 
 

Role and effectiveness of the East 
of England Regional Assembly. 
 

Service Delivery 

Support for vulnerable people Service Delivery 
 

The Council’s Plans in terms of 
Tourism and Sports Infrastructure in 
preparation for the 2012 Olympics. 
 

Service Delivery 

 

3. RECOMMENDATION 

 
3.1 The Panel is requested to note the progress of the studies selected. 
 

 

Contact Officer:  Mrs Claire Bulman - (((( (01480) 388234. 

 

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS 
Minutes and Reports from previous meetings of the Overview and Scrutiny Panels. 

432



   

AREA OF REVIEW DETAILS/COMMENTS 

Title of Study 
(name of Working Group) 

Heavy Goods Vehicle Working Group 

Appointing Panel Overview and Scrutiny (Service Support) Panel 

Members Assigned 
(including date Working Group 
appointed)  

Councillors K M Baker, P H Dakers, P M D Godfrey and L W 
McGuire. 
 
Appointed by Panel on 12th February 2008. 
 

Possible Co-Options to the 
Group 

N/A 

Interests Declared Councillor L W McGuire as a member of Cambridgeshire 
County Council. 

Rapporteur Councillor P H Dakers 

Officer Support  
 

Mr Roy Reeves – Head of Administration, HDC 
Mrs Claire Bulman – Democratic Services, HDC 
Mr Stuart Bell – Transportation Team Leader, HDC 

Purpose of Study / Objective 
(specify exactly what the study 
should achieve) 

To consider the issue of overnight HGV parking within the 
District. 

Rationale 
(key issues and/or reason for 
conducting a study) 

Study was suggested by the Overview and Scrutiny Panel 
(Service Support) to address the issues raised above. 

Terms of Reference HDC’s Accountancy Section 
Department for Transport 
Highways Agency 
HDC’s Transport policy 
 

Links to Council 
Policies/Strategies 

Links to the community aim of Access to Services and 
Transport. One of the key activities identified is Transport 
Planning. 

 

ACTION BY WORKING GROUP 

Methodology / Approach 
(what types of enquiries will be 
used to gather evidence) 

Information from Other Authorities 
Information from Transport Team 
National Research 

External/Specialist Support N/A 

Existing Documentation Guide to Truckstops in England 
Cambridgeshire News online 
Parking Forum Documentation 
Existing Studies – Kent & Suffolk 
Briefing Paper by Transportation Team Leader 

Evidence to be Obtained 
(e.g. witnesses, documents, site 
visits, consultation, research, 
etc) 

Progress on DFT lorry study 
Details of problems experienced in other local authority 
areas 
Potential to consider issue through the Local Area 
Agreement 
 

Reference Sites 
 

Department of Transport 
http://www.dft.gov.uk/ 
Highways Agency 

433



   

http://www.highways.gov.uk 
http://www.roadtransport.com 
Cambridgeshire County Council 
http://www.cambridgeshire.gov.uk 
 

Investigations 
 

None 

Witnesses 
 

N/A 

Site Visits (if necessary) 
(where and when) 

N/A 

Meetings of the Working 
Group 

25th April 2008 

Costs 
(resource requirements, 
additional expenditure, time) 
 

Officer time ~ both to provide support / conduct research 
and prepare final report. 
Meetings of Working Group usually last around 1.5 hours. 
 
No other external costs identified to date. 

Possible Barriers to the Study 
(potential weaknesses) 

A national and countywide issue 

Projected Timescale 
(Start and end times) 
 

Start ~ 12th February 2008 
End  ~   June 2008 
 

 

 

 

434



   

AREA OF REVIEW DETAILS/COMMENTS 

Title of Study 
(name of Working Group) 

Section 106 Working Group 

Appointing Panel Overview and Scrutiny (Service Support) Panel 

Members Assigned 
(including date Working Group 
appointed)  

Councillors P J Downes, D Harty, M F Newman and R G 
Tuplin 
 
Appointed by Panel on 12th February 2008. 
 

Possible Co-Options to the 
Group 

Councillor T D Sanderson 
 
Appointed by Panel on 8th April 2008. 

Interests Declared Councillors P J Downes and D Harty as members of 
Cambridgeshire County Council. 
 

Rapporteur Councillor D Harty 

Officer Support  
 

Mr Roy Reeves – Head of Administration, HDC 
Mrs Claire Bulman –Democratic Services, HDC 
Mr Steve Ingram – Head of Planning Services, HDC 
Mr Ian Leatherbarrow – Head of Policy & Strategic Services 
 

Purpose of Study / Objective 
(specify exactly what the study 
should achieve) 

To investigate the Section 106 process adopted by the 
Council including the relationship with other infrastructure 
partners and make recommendations if improvements are 
thought to be necessary. 
 

Rationale 
(key issues and/or reason for 
conducting a study) 

Arising from Members concerns relating to S106 monitoring 
reports and the study by the Cycling Working Group which 
found it difficult to create an audit trail of money spent by 
different authorities. 
 

Terms of Reference To be agreed at next meeting of the Group. 

Links to Council 
Policies/Strategies 

Links to Council’s Policy Framework. 

 

ACTION BY WORKING GROUP 

Methodology / Approach 
(what types of enquiries will be 
used to gather evidence) 

Information from Heads of Service, Partner Organisations 
and other Members of the Council. 

External/Specialist Support N/A 

Existing Documentation Current monitoring reports 
Report of the Cycling Working Group ~ Feb 2008 

Evidence to be Obtained 
(e.g. witnesses, documents, site 
visits, consultation, research, 
etc) 

Most of the evidence will be obtained by the Democratic 
Services Team together with information from Operational 
Services Directorate. 

Reference Sites 
 

To be established 

435



   

Investigations 
 

Initially presentations to be made by Heads of Planning 
Services, Operations, Housing Services and Policy & 
Strategic Services. Partner organisations also to be invited 
to attend. 
 
Questionnaire to be issued to all members at a later date. 
 

Witnesses 
 

As above. 

Site Visits (if necessary) 
(where and when) 

N/A at current time. 

Meetings of the Working 
Group 

20th May 2008. 

Costs 
(resource requirements, 
additional expenditure, time) 
 

Officer time ~ both to provide support and to conduct 
research. 
 
No other external costs identified to date. 

Possible Barriers to the Study 
(potential weaknesses) 

None identified. 

Projected Timescale 
(Start and end times) 
 

Start ~ 12th February 2008 
Finish – October 2008 

 

 

436



   

AREA OF REVIEW DETAILS/COMMENTS 

Title of Study 
(name of Working Group) 

Parish Charter Working Group 

Appointing Panel Overview and Scrutiny (Service Support) Panel 

Members Assigned 
(including date Working Group 
appointed)  

Councillors J W Davies, P J Downes and R G Tuplin. 
Appointed by Panel on 12th June 2007. 

Possible Co-Options to the 
Group 

N/A 

Interests Declared None received, 

Rapporteur Councillor P J Downes 

Officer Support  
 

Mr Roy Reeves – Head of Administration, HDC 
Mrs Karen Pauley – Support Services Assistant, HDC 
Miss Natalie Giles – Trainee Democratic Services, HDC 

Purpose of Study / Objective 
(specify exactly what the study 
should achieve) 

To review the draft Parish Charter for the Council’s 
relationship with town and parish councils in the District and 
to make recommendations to Cabinet. 

Rationale 
(key issues and/or reason for 
conducting a study) 

As identified above. 

Terms of Reference Government Quality Parish Council Initiative 
Establishment of more formalised arrangements with Town 
and Parishes in Huntingdonshire. 

Links to Council 
Policies/Strategies 

Yes ~ to achieve the Council aim identified in the Corporate 
Plan “to improve our systems and practices”. 

 

ACTION BY WORKING GROUP 

Methodology / Approach 
(what types of enquiries will be 
used to gather evidence) 

Consultation with County and other District Councils in 
Cambridgeshire. 

External/Specialist Support N/A 

Existing Documentation Existing draft Parish Charter 
Government Quality Parish Council initiative 
Impending legislation change 

Evidence to be Obtained 
(e.g. witnesses, documents, site 
visits, consultation, research, 
etc) 

• Research cost of services that could potentially be 
devolved 

• Progress made by Cambridgeshire County Council and 
other District councils towards Charter implementation 

• Consultation with CALC 
• Consultation with parish councils 

Reference Sites 
 

None 

Investigations 
 

With the Town and Parish Councils. 

Witnesses 
 

Town and Parish Clerks. 

Site Visits (if necessary) 
(where and when) 

N/A 

437



   

Meetings of the Working 
Group 

First meeting held  ~ 28th August 2007 
 
Second meeting held ~ 26th September 2007. 
 
Next meeting to be held – 2nd June 2008 

Costs 
(resource requirements, 
additional expenditure, time) 
 

Officer time – both to conduct research and provide support. 
 
No other external costs identified to date. 

Possible Barriers to the Study 
(potential weaknesses) 

N/A 

Projected Timescale 
(Start and end times) 
 

Start ~ 12th June 2007 
 
Completion of Study expected July 2008 

 

 

438



 
 

  
 

OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY PANEL 
(SERVICE SUPPORT) 

10TH JUNE 2008 

 

PROGRESS TO DATE 
(Report by the Head of Administration) 

 
 
1. INTRODUCTION 
 
1.1 The Panel have asked for the submission of a brief progress report to 

their monthly meetings to monitor action taken and the response to 
any recommendations which they have made. 

 
2. PROGRESS REPORT 
 
2.1 The monthly progress report therefore is attached which covers all 

outstanding items.  Actions previously reported upon as having been 
completed have been deleted from the report as the process rolls 
forward.  The report is in tabular form and comprises a brief synopsis 
of the Panel’s decisions and the subsequent action taken. 

 
3. CONCLUSION 
 
3.1 The Panel are requested to note the contents of the attached report. 
 
 
 
 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
 
Minutes and Reports of the Overview & Scrutiny Panel (Planning and Finance/ 
Service Support) 
 
 
Contact Officer: Mrs C Bulman –Democratic Services Officer 
 (((( (01480) 388234 
  
 
 
 

Agenda Item 10

439



  

Panel  
Date 

Decision Action Response Date 
 

 
 

 
 
06/07 
 
 

PARISH CHARTER WORKING GROUP 
 
Agreed to establish a working group to review the draft 
Parish Charter on the Council’s relationship with Town 
and Parish Councils in the District. 

 
 
Meetings of the working Group held in 
August and September 2007. 

 
 
Next meeting of Working 
Group to be held on 2nd June 
2008. 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

June 08 
 
 
 

 

 
 

 
 
12/02/08 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
11/03/08 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

THE COUNCIL’S TRAVEL PLAN 
 
Endorsed the report of the working group and their 
recommendations for submission to the Cabinet. 
 
 
 
 
Further consideration to be given by the Working 
Group to possible incentives for employees to use 
public transport or travel by foot or cycle. 
 
Panel requested Corporate Governance Panel to 
consider those recommendations relating to Member’s 
allowances 
 
Asked Head of Environmental Management to 
consider those recommendations relating to the 
preparation of a new Environment Strategy 

 
 
Cabinet approved the recommendations 
and requested that they be investigated 
in the context of the emerging 
Environment Strategy, the car parking 
action plan and the travel plan. 
 
To be considered at a later date. 
 
 
 
Report considered by the Corporate 
Governance Panel at their meeting on 
26th March 2008. 
 
Email sent to Head of Environmental 
Management drawing his attention to 
relevant recommendations. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Included in future list of 
studies. 
 
 
Recommendations endorsed 
by full Council. 
 
 
Email sent from Head of 
Environmental Management to 
Chairman of Panel. Reports on 
Pool Car Emissions and costs 
to be prepared at a later date. 

 

 
 
 
 
 

4
4
0



  

Panel  
Date 

Decision Action Response Date 
 

 

12/02/08 CYCLING IN HUNTINGDONSHIRE 
 
Endorsed the Working Group’s report and 
recommendations for submission of the Cabinet and 
requested that the study recommendations be placed 
on the progress report for future monitoring. 
 
[Recommendations are appended to this report]. 

 
 
 

 
 
Considered by the Cabinet at their 
meeting on 12th February 2008. Cabinet 
noted the recommendations and 
requested a further report by officers 
addressing the wider issue of Section 
106 funding and partnership working. 
Agreed that discussions should be held 
with Cambridgeshire County Council 
regarding their offer to update the 
Huntingdonshire Cycling Strategy and 
the issue of partnership working on 
cycling provision. 

 
 
Report updating the Panel on 
the current position the review 
of the Cycling Strategy and the 
provision for funding for 
Huntingdonshire in the LTP 
included on Agenda for this 
meeting. Agenda Item No. 5 
refers 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

June 08 

 

 
 
 
12/02/08 

HEAVY GOODS VEHICLE PARKING IN THE 
DISTRICT 
 
Agreed to establish a working group comprising 
Councillors K M Baker, P H Dakers, P M D Godfrey 
and L W McGuire to identify and review the issue of 
Heavy Goods Vehicle parking throughout the District. 

 
 
 
First meeting held on 25th April 2008. 

 
 
 
Report of the Working Group 
to be considered at June 
Panel meeting. Agenda item 
No. 6 refers 

 
 
 
 
 
 

June 08 

 

 
 
 
12/02/08 
 
 
 
 
 

PETITION BY ST AUDREY LANE AREA RESIDENTS, 
ST IVES 
 
Asked for a robust reply to be sent to Anglian Water. 
 
Requested submission of a report on the respective 
responsibilities of the relevant agencies with a view to 
the possible invitation to Anglian Water for a 
representative from the company to attend a future 
meeting of the Panel. 

 
 
 
Letter sent 9th April 2008.  
 
Representative from Anglian Water 
invited to attend a future meeting of the 
Group.  
 
Councillors K Baker, M G Baker and J 
W Davies appointed to a Working 
Group for the purpose of obtaining 
further information from local residents. 

 
 
 
 
 
Anglian Water to attend Panel 
meeting on 8th July 2008. 
 
 
Site visit held on 20th May 
2008. 
 
 

 

 

4
4
1



  

Panel  
Date 

Decision Action Response Date 
 

 
 

12/02/08 SPEAKING AT DEVELOPMENT CONTROL PANEL 
MEETINGS 
 
Agreed that comments should be invited from all 
Members on the operation of the procedure for public 
speaking at meetings of the Development Control 
Panel and co-ordinated for submission to the 
Development Control Panel. 

 
 
 
Questionnaire circulated to all Members 
of the Council. 
 
Additional Questionnaire also circulated 
to members of the public who had 
addressed the Development Control 
Panel within the past year. 

 
 
 
Responses received from 12 
Members. 
 
Responses being collated. 
Report to be prepared for 
Panel meeting in July 08. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

July 08 

 

 
 
09/01/07 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
13/03/07 
 

REVIEW OF LOCAL PROCUREMENT 
 
Endorsed the recommendations of the Working Group 
established to consider the question of local 
procurement by the Council. In light of the issues  
raised, agreed that the Chairman, Vice Chairman, 
Executive Councillor and Members of the Working 
Party should meet with representatives of the 
Huntingdonshire Business Network, Federation of 
Small Businesses and the Chamber of Trade. 
 
Agreed that Working Group should continue in 
existence to monitor progress in Autumn and meet 
with the business community at this time. 

 
 
Meeting held on 28th February 2007. 
Positive outcomes, agreed that a 
number of measures be explored to 
improve local business awareness of 
future contracts. Suggested future 
meeting should be arranged to keep 
communication channels open. 
 
 
Subsequent meeting held on 22nd 
November 2007. Report presented at 
Panel’s December meeting. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Further meeting to be held in 
new Municipal Year to review 
progress and consider the 
implications of the Council’s 
emerging Environment 
Strategy. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
August 08 

 

 
 
14/05/08 
 
 
 
 

CORPORATE PLAN – GROWING SUCCESS 
 
Councillors M G Baker, J A Gray and R G Tuplin 
appointed to Corporate Plan Working Group.  

 
 
Quarterly reports submitted to Overview 
& Scrutiny. 
 
Working Group to act as a conduit 
between the Panels and the LAA Board. 

 
 
 
 
 
Meeting held on 15th May 
2008. Further meetings to be 
arranged. 

 
 

June 08 

4
4
2



  

 
 

Panel  
Date 

Decision Action Response Date 
 

 

 
 
15/01/08 
 
 
 
14/05/08 

LOCAL AREA AGREEMENTS 
 
Minutes of future meetings of the Cambridgeshire 
Together Local Accountability Committee should be 
circulated to all Panel Members. 
 
Councillor J A Gray appointed to Joint Accountability 
Committee. Substitute members to be appointed in 
consultation with Head of Administration. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
Next meeting 22nd October 2008 at 
18.00pm. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 
 
13/11/07 
 
 
 

CALL CENTRE MONITORING 
 
Requested that quarterly performance reports be 
circulated informally to Members of the Panel and an 
item included on the agenda every 6 months in future. 

 
 
Formal report due September 

  
 

Sept 08 

 

 
 
 
13/11/07 
 
 

AFFORDABLE HOUSING SUPPLEMENTARY 
PLANNING DOCUMENT 
 
Requested that copies of the Strategic Housing Market 
Assessment proposed in the SPD should be 
distributed when this became available. 

 
 
 
Copy provided to Chairman for further 
consideration. 

 
 
 
 

 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

4
4
3



  

 

Panel  
Date 

Decision Action Response Date 
 

 

 
 
14/04/05 
 
 
 
 
 
 
12/12/06 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
11/09/07 
 
 
 
11/12/07 
 
 
 
 
12/02/08 
 
 
 
 
 

MONITORING OF SECTION 106 AGREEMENTS 
 
Quarterly reports to be submitted to the Panel. 
 

 
 
 

 
 
Asked Head of Planning Services to consult the Panel 
on any consultation on possible planning gain 
supplement development tax which would lead to 
changes in policy as this became available. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Request for further information on the mechanisms for 
ensuring that money received from s106 agreements 
is spent for the purpose specified in the agreement. 
 
Executive Councillor for Operations, Parks and 
Countryside asked to consult with the Panel on any 
proposals that emerged from his investigations into the 
review of the s106 process. 
 
Agreed to establish a working Group comprising 
Councillors P J Downes, D Harty, M F Newman and R 
G Tuplin to investigate the current Section 106 
Agreement Mechanism for the negotiation of 
agreements and the distribution of money received. 
 

 
 
Next report due June 2008. Head of 
Policy & Strategic Services asked to 
include details of any non-monetary 
receipts as well as income in future 
reports. 
 
 
Email from Head of Planning Services 
circulated to Panel. ( June 07) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Group asked to arrange interview with 
Councillor Bates to seek strategic 
guidance to ensure that the work of the 
group takes the same direction as 
intended by the leadership. First 
meeting held on 20th May 2008. 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Government abandoned 
previous proposals to 
introduce planning gain 
supplement. Currently 
consulting on potential 
introduction of a community 
infrastructure levy. Seminar 
held for all members regarding 
current s106 procedures and 
the potential introduction of 
CIL held on 4th March. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Agreed that Scrutiny would 
undertake an all 
encompassing review of s106 
agreements. Further meeting 
of the working group to be 
arranged with relevant Heads 
of Service and partner 
organisations. 

 
 
 
 
 

June 08 
 
 
 

4
4
4



  

  

Panel  
Date 

Decision Action Response Date 
 

 

 
 
13/11/07 
 
 
 
 
 

LOCAL PETITION AND CALLS FOR ACTION 
 
Head of Administration drew attention to “community 
calls for action” proposals contained in recent 
legislation which was intended to enable the public to 
raise issues for scrutiny and would submit a report on 
the implications when the guidance had been issued 
by Government. 

 
 
Report submitted to February meeting 
inviting comments on a consultation 
paper from the Department for 
Communities and Local Government on 
local petitions and calls for action. 
 

 
 
Subject to a number of 
proposed amendments to 
reflect the comments of the 
Panel, endorsed the proposed 
answers to the consultation. 
 
Further reports to be submitted 
on legislative changes to 
overview and scrutiny when 
guidance and regulations 
emerge. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Unknown 

 

 
 
12/09/06 
 
 
 
 
09/01/07 
 
 
 
 
 
09/07 

ICT DEVELOPMENTS 
 
Requested further information on the current status of 
the Pilot of mobile technology within the Benefits 
Division. 
 
 
Requested sight of forthcoming reports prior to their 
consideration by Cabinet:- 
 

v Flexible Working Strategy 
 
 
Asked for a future report on the outcome of the home 
working project in the Revenues and Benefits and 
Environmental and Community Health Service 
Divisions be submitted to a future meeting. 
 
 

 

 
 
Report on progress of trial and 
demonstration submitted to December 
meeting. 
 
 
 
 
 
Briefing Note on Flexible Working 
Strategy submitted to Panel’s 
September meeting.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
Briefing Paper circulated to 
Members of the Panel for 
information. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Report to be included on future 
agenda. 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Autumn 08 
 
 
 
 

 

 
 

4
4
5



  

Panel  
Date 

Decision Action Response Date 
 

 

 
 
08/04/08 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
09/10/07 
 
 
 
 
13/11/07 
 
 
 

FORWARD PLAN 
 

Development Control Policies Preferred Options 
 
Requested that report should be considered at a future 
meeting of the Panel. 
 

Core Strategy 
 
Requested that report should be considered at a future 
meeting of the Panel. 
 

Huntingdon West Area Action Plan 
 
Requested that the report should be considered at a 
future meeting of the Panel. 
 

 Parish Plans and Local Plan Policy 
 
Circulate report when this becomes available. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
To be included on Agenda for 
September meeting. 
 
 
 
 
Agenda Item No.4  refers. 
 
 
 
To be included on agenda for 
September meeting. 
 
 
 
To be included on agenda for 
September meeting. 

 
 
 
 

Sept 08 
 
 
 
 

June 08 
 
 
 
 

Sept 08 
 
 
 

 
Sept 08 

 

 
    RECOMMENDATIONS ARISING FROM CYCLING IN HUNTINGDONSHIRE 
 
  (a) that the offer by the County Council to update the Council’s existing cycling strategy and to prepare an action plan  for its 

implementation be welcomed and officers requested to conclude this work within the next six months; 
 
  (b) that, following completion of the strategy and action plan, specific contributions be sought in Section 106 Agreements for 

cycleway provision in Huntingdonshire in appropriate cases;  
 
  (c) that contributions negotiated under (b) above be retained by the District Council for expenditure on implementation of the cycling 

strategy action plan; 
 
  (d) that the District Council seek the allocation of specific funding through the Local Transport Plan for cycleway provision in 

Huntingdonshire;  
 
  (e) that the approval of individual cycleway schemes continue to be the responsibility of the Huntingdonshire Traffic Management 

Area Joint Committee with District Council expenditure continuing to be allocated on a scheme by scheme basis.   

4
4
6



DDD eee ccc iii sss iii ooo nnn DDD iii ggg eee sss ttt Edition 83

Monthly summary of the decisions taken at meetings of the Council, 
Cabinet, Overview & Scrutiny and other Panels for the period 20th March 
to 30th April 2008. 

Further information can be obtained from the Democratic Services Section  (01480) 388007

CHANGES TO THE CODE OF 
FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT 

The Corporate Governance Panel 
has recommended the Council to 
approve a series of changes to the 
Code of Financial Management.

ASSURANCE FRAMEWORK AND 
ANNUAL GOVERNANCE 
STATEMENT 

In endorsing the content of an 
assurance framework, the 
Corporate Governance Panel also 
has noted the progress made to 
date in respect of the achievement 
of the action plan supporting the 
Annual Governance Statement.

EXTERNAL AUDITOR’S 
REPORTS 

Details of the external auditor’s 
reports on the Council’s Data 
Quality arrangements and Use of 
Resources for 2006/07 and their 
respective action plans have been 
presented to the Corporate 
Governance Panel.  Both reports 
conclude that the Council’s overall 
management arrangements and 
performance is of a satisfactory 
standard.

ANNUAL AUDIT AND 
INSPECTION LETTER 

Having regard to the Annual Audit 
and Inspection Letter for 2006/07, 
the Corporate Governance Panel   
was encouraged to note that the 
Council’s rate of improvement in the 
priority areas identified compared 
favourably against other District 
Councils.  The Council also has 
consistently exceeded the Audit 
Commission’s criteria for 
“performing well”.  Discussions 
continue with the Audit Commission 
about the value of some Best Value 
Performance Indicators (BVPI’s).

RISK REGISTER UPDATE 

The attention of the Corporate 
Governance Panel has been drawn 
to the high “red” risks highlighted in 
the Risk Register, the basis on 
which the Register had been 
compiled and the process by which 
those risks identified had been 
reviewed. Future update reports will 
only include details of new or 
changed entries to the Register. 

Agenda Item 11

447



Edition 83 DDD eee ccc iii sss iii ooo nnn DDD iii ggg eee sss ttt

Further information can be obtained from the Democratic Services Section  (01480) 388007

page 2 

INTERNAL AUDIT SERVICE:  
INTERNAL AUDIT PLAN 2008 

The Internal Audit and Assurance 
Plan for the four months period 
commencing 1st April 2008 has 
been approved by the Corporate 
Governance Panel.

The Panel also has noted progress 
by the Internal Audit Service against 
the Audit Plan for 2007/08 and the 
performance standards achieved. 

WHISTLEBLOWING:  ANNUAL 
REVIEW OF POLICY AND 
PROCEDURE

Having been informed of the 
outcome of the annual review of the 
Whistleblowing Policy and 
Procedure, the Corporate 
Governance Panel has concluded 
that no changes are required.

TRAVEL PLAN 

The Corporate Governance Panel 
has been acquainted with the 
conclusions reached by the 
Overview and Scrutiny Panel 
(Service Support) and Cabinet 
following a review of the Council’s 
Travel Plan and, in particular, the 
proposals impinging on Members’ 
Allowances, which would require 
changes to the Council’s 
Constitution. Having dismissed a 
proposal to vary the allowances as 
recommended by the Overview and 
Scrutiny Panel and Cabinet, the 
Panel has recommended the 
Council to approve a series of 
recommendations which will result 
in changes to mileage allowances 

and the Members Allowances 
Scheme.

TOWN CENTRE INITIATIVES 

The Cabinet has been informed of 
the findings of a review by a 
Working Group appointed by the 
Overview and Scrutiny Panel 
(Service Support) into the purpose, 
cost and achievements of the Town 
Centre Initiatives across the District.  
In acknowledging that the work of 
the Partnerships has been 
extremely beneficial to the District, 
attention was drawn to their funding 
arrangements.  To ensure their 
long-term stability and effectiveness, 
the Cabinet has agreed to invite the 
Partnerships to enter into three year 
funding arrangements which, in 
return for the maintenance of 
existing grants and other assistance 
from the Council, will require each 
Partnership to produce a three year 
business plan with annual action 
plans and targets designed to 
support delivery of the Local 
Economy Strategy and to sustain 
and encourage the economic 
viability of the town centres. 

THE ENVIRONMENT STRATEGY 

The Overview and Scrutiny Panel 
(Corporate and Strategic 
Framework) has considered the 
Council’s Environment Strategy, 
scheduled to launch during 
Environment Week in June.  The 
Strategy identifies and addresses 
three key environmental challenges 
to be delivered within the District 
through a five year implementation 
action plan.  These are - 

Tackling climate change; 

448



DDD eee ccc iii sss iii ooo nnn DDD iii ggg eee sss ttt Edition 82

Further information can be obtained from the Democratic Services Section  (01480) 388007

page 3 

Using resources efficiently; and 
Protecting and improving the 
environment.

The Panel has discussed various 
aspects of the Strategy including the 
financial and carbon cost 
implications; the importance of 
advice provided by the Council to 
residents when improving their 
homes; the assertiveness of the 
language to be included in the 
document; and the need to balance 
competing priorities between the 
environment and the economy.

The Panel also has recognised the 
value of the Council’s involvement in 
the Energy Saving Trusts 
accreditation scheme for installers 
and subsequently endorsed the 
Strategy’s submission to the 
Cabinet in April 2008. 

DISABILITY ACCESS STUDY 

The Overview and Scrutiny Panel 
(Service Delivery) has received a 
presentation by the Forum Manager 
for Disability Cambridgeshire 
(Directions Plus) on her 
organisation’s work and their 
achievements to date.  The Panel 
has discussed with the Forum 
Manager the extent of consultation 
undertaken prior to the installation of 
defective dropped kerbs by 
Cambridgeshire County Council; 
unauthorised parking in disabled 
bays; the misuse of Blue Badge 
parking permits and in particular the 
process for obtaining Blue Badges 
and the consequences of their 
illegal use. 

The Panel has reiterated the 
importance of consultation with 
disability groups and individuals on 

the Council’s procedures, policies 
and planning issues. In receiving 
updates on other aspects of the 
study, the Panel was disappointed 
at the response received to  
consultation regarding the provision 
of advocacy services and has 
agreed to reconsider how this can 
be improved with the assistance of 
the Hunts Forum of Voluntary 
Organisations, who will be invited to 
a future meeting.

OUTCOME OF THE 
CAMBRIDGESHIRE SUPPORTING 
PEOPLE HOME IMPROVEMENT 
AGENCY REVIEW 

The Overview and Scrutiny Panel 
(Service Delivery) has been updated 
on the progress of a review of Home 
Improvement Agencies in 
Cambridgeshire.  Having noted the 
order of funding involved and the 
preliminary findings and variations 
between the District Councils on the 
costs and satisfaction levels of 
services offered, the Panel has 
welcomed the fact that 
Huntingdonshire compare 
favourably in both criteria. 

WORK PROGRAMME AND 
ENGAGEMENT WITH THE 
EXECUTIVE

The Overview and Scrutiny Panel 
(Service Delivery) has reviewed the 
way in which it engages with the 
Executive and has noted that in the 
current year fewer items in the 
Forward Plan appear to have fallen 
under the remit of the Service 
Delivery Panel compared with the 
Service Support Panel. 

449



Edition 83 DDD eee ccc iii sss iii ooo nnn DDD iii ggg eee sss ttt

Further information can be obtained from the Democratic Services Section  (01480) 388007

page 4 

The Panel has decided to await the 
outcome of discussions between the 
Scrutiny Panel Chairmen before 
inviting Executive Councillors to 
future meetings to discuss their 
plans for the forthcoming year and 
to create a work programme in 
which the Scrutiny Panel 
constructively contributes to the 
Cabinet’s business. 

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY 
PANEL (SERVICE DELIVERY) - 
PROGRESS

The Panel has been acquainted with 
the progress of the Roads and 
Sewers Working Group and the 
Grants Working Group.

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 2000 
– FORWARD PLAN 

The Overview and Scrutiny Panel 
(Service Delivery) has requested 
sight of a report on “Adoption of 
Local Standards for the Provision of 
Sports Facilities in Huntingdonshire” 
report prior to its consideration by 
Cabinet.

In addition, the Panel has asked to 
consider reports by the Planning 
Policy Manager on the adoption of 
the Core Strategy and preferred 
options for Development Control 
policies at a future meeting. 

REGIONAL SPATIAL STRATEGY 
– PLANNING FOR GYPSY AND 
TRAVELLER ACCOMMODATION 
(DRAFT POLICY)

The Overview and Scrutiny Panel 
(Service Support) and Cabinet have 

considered the Council’s suggested 
response to the draft policy by the 
East of England Assembly on the 
numbers of gypsy and traveller 
pitches to be accommodated by 
each local planning authority as part 
of the Regional Spatial Strategy. 

In endorsing the recommendations 
presented as a sensible approach, 
the Panel expressed concern about 
the potential for some authorities to 
object to the proposed allocation 
because they wished to make no or 
inadequate provision for gypsies 
and travellers. Any consequential 
re-distribution of pitches could, 
therefore, adversely impact upon 
Huntingdonshire’s proposed 
allocation. 

The Panel has been informed that 
the preparation of a Development 
Plan Document (DPD) to determine 
sites for gypsies and travellers in the 
District was unlikely to be finalised 
until some time in 2009 as part of 
the Local Development Framework 
(LDF). However the Panel was 
conscious of the potential difficulty 
in dealing with unauthorised 
encampments and determining 
planning applications in the interim 
and have therefore suggested that 
the DPD should be developed as 
soon as practicable within the LDF 
timescale.

Subsequently, the Cabinet has 
given its support to the policy on the 
basis it is consistent with the local 
need for Huntingdonshire identified 
in the Assessment of Need and the 
evidence base.  The Cabinet also 
has noted the requirement for all 
local authorities to provide at least 
some pitches, including areas where 
previously no or little provision has 

450



DDD eee ccc iii sss iii ooo nnn DDD iii ggg eee sss ttt Edition 82

Further information can be obtained from the Democratic Services Section  (01480) 388007

page 5 

been made.  However, Executive 
Councillors have agreed that the 
Council should reserve its position 
should some local authorities seek 
to challenge this equality of 
provision by any alternative 
redistribution which would result in 
unjustified increase in provision 
within Huntingdonshire.  At the 
same time, the East of England 
Regional Assembly has been 
requested to include within the 
policy an explanation as to why a 
3% compound rate of increase is 
proposed and an indication that a 
future review will need to take into 
account the requirement for transit 
sites and the needs of travelling 
show people. 

SEWERAGE PROBLEMS, ST 
AUDREYS LANE, ST IVES 

Following the presentation to their 
meeting in February, of a petition 
signed by 26 people, the Overview 
& Scrutiny Panel (Service Support) 
has considered further information 
on the sewerage problems 
experienced in St Audrey’s Lane, St 
Ives and the responsibilities of those 
parties involved in the drainage of 
this area. 

The Panel’s attention has been 
drawn to the recent Statutory 
Instrument, the Water Supply and 
Sewerage Services (Customer 
Service Standards) 2008 which 
came into force on 1st April 2008 
and provides for financial 
compensation to customers for each 
and every occurrence of internal 
and external flooding from foul 
sewers.

Having listened to the concerns of 
local residents and been advised of 
the outcome of discussions and 
correspondence with Anglian Water, 
the Panel have invited a 
representative from Anglian Water 
to attend a future meeting to discuss 
the way forward. 

In the event of Anglian Water 
choosing to accept this invitation, 
Councillors K Baker, M G Baker and 
J W Davies have been appointed to 
a working group for the purpose of 
gathering further information from 
local residents. 

FINANCIAL MONITORING – 
REVENUE BUDGET AND 
CAPITAL PROGRAMMES – 
2007/08

The Cabinet has noted the expected 
Revenue Budget variations 
identified in the current year and 
also been acquainted with variations 
in the Capital Programme. 

DESIGN SCORING EXERCISE – 
HUNTINGDON 

The Development Control Panel has 
reviewed the outcome of the design 
scoring exercise undertaken in 
February which related to four 
recently completed developments in 
Huntingdon.  Whilst supporting the 
continuation of the initiative, 
Members were of the view that the 
scoring method required 
improvement, that the team of 
advisors accompanying the visits 
should include representatives from 
Environmental Management and the 
police to bring a different view point 
and that more Members should 

451



Edition 83 DDD eee ccc iii sss iii ooo nnn DDD iii ggg eee sss ttt

Further information can be obtained from the Democratic Services Section  (01480) 388007

page 6 

participate in future planned visits 
for St Ives and St Neots.  The 
scoring method reflected criteria 
used in the ‘Building for Life’ guide. 

APPEAL DECISIONS 

As part of their regular review of 
decisions made by HM Planning 
Inspectorate following appeals 
against decisions taken by the 
District Council on development 
applications, the Development 
Control Panel has requested the 
Head of Planning Services to seek 
clarification of terms used by an 
Inspector in a case which involved 
development in a conservation area.  
The Inspector used the phrase 
“would not be unacceptably 
diminished by the proposed works” 
contrary to planning legislation 
which seeks to “protect and 
enhance”.

DEVELOPMENT APPLICATIONS 

Of the eight applications considered 
by the Development Control Panel 
in April, three were approved and 
five refused.  Most notable of these 
was the approval given for the 
erection of a community building 
and car parking on land rear of the 
Rainbow Superstore, Eaton Socon.  
The building will comprise a main 
hall to be used by various 
community groups and a nursery 
able to accommodate 26 children. 

452



DDD eee ccc iii sss iii ooo nnn DDD iii ggg eee sss ttt Edition 84

Monthly summary of the decisions taken at meetings of the Council, 
Cabinet, Overview & Scrutiny and other Panels for the period 6th – 30th

May 2008 

Further information can be obtained from the Democratic Services Section  (01480) 388007

NATIONAL AIR TRAFFIC 
SERVICE CONSULTATION – 
CHANGES TO TERMINAL 
CONTROL NORTH AIR SPACE 
OVER CAMBRIDGESHIRE 

The key elements of a proposal by 
the National Air Traffic Service to 
change the use of terminal control 
north, an area of airspace extending 
from London to Huntingdon, have 
been considered by the Cabinet. 

Luton and Stansted Airports 
currently share two holds in the 
vicinity of Royston and Sudbury.  
With the continued growth in air 
traffic, the National Air Traffic 
Service proposes to relocate these 
holds to new air space and create a 
new third hold.  It is intended that 
two of the holds will be dedicated to 
Stansted and one for Luton.  
Members had been advised that the 
proposed new hold for Luton will 
lead to a number of aircraft stacking 
over the south of the District.  With 
this in mind, the Cabinet has 
questioned the need to change the 
site of the existing holds being of the 
opinion that their retention together 
with the creation of an additional 
new hold would be the better option.  
At the same time, Members have 
expressed concern about the impact 
of noise from aircraft stacking, the

threat to tranquillity from noise and 
visual intrusion and the general 
detriment to the environment and 
well being of the population in rural 
areas.  Reference also was made to 
the National Air Traffic Service’s 
failure to take into account the 
population growth factor predicted 
for Cambridgeshire and the potential 
effects on the growth of air traffic.  
The Council’s response will need to 
be submitted to the National Air 
Traffic Service by 19th June 2008 
and in that respect the Cabinet has 
authorised the Director of 
Environmental and Community 
Services, after consultation with the 
Executive Councillor for Finance 
and Environment, to respond to the 
proposals.

LOCAL AREA AGREEMENT 

A new Local Area Agreement for 
Cambridgeshire has been endorsed 
by the Cabinet.  The Agreement 
reflects the Government’s intention 
to streamline funding, encourage 
partnership working and direct 
investment towards local priorities. 

453



Edition 84 DDD eee ccc iii sss iii ooo nnn DDD iii ggg eee sss ttt

Further information can be obtained from the Democratic Services Section  (01480) 388007

page 2 

THE COUNCIL’S CONSTITUTION:
SCHEME OF DELEGATION AND 
MONITORING OFFICER 

Having been informed of the 
impending retirement of the Director 
of Central Services, the Cabinet has 
authorised the Chief Executive to 
undertake the executive and other 
powers delegated to this role by 
virtue of the Scheme of Delegation.  
This is an interim measure and will 
take effect from 27th June 2008. 

DOCUMENT CENTRE – 
PURCHASE OF INSERTER 

In accordance with paragaph 11.4 of 
the Council’s Code of Procurement, 
the Cabinet has approved the 
acceptance of an estimate from 
Mailing and Mechanisation for the 
supply of inserting equipment. 

FLEXIBLE WORKING:  REMOTE 
ACCESS PROJECT 

The Cabinet has been informed of 
the circumstances surrounding the 
acceptance of a quotation other 
than the lowest received for the 
supply of a “two factor 
authentication” system as part of the 
remote access project. 

DESIGN BRIEF, MAYFIELD 
ROAD, HUNTINGDON 

In their consideration of the 
development opportunities 
presented by the Design Brief for an 
area of open space along Mayfield 
Road, Huntingdon, the Development 
Control Panel have recommended 
that the Brief be adopted as Council 
Policy provided approximately 1/3 of 

the development site is retained as 
open space. 

SOMERSHAM CONSERVATION 
AREA: BOUNDARY REVIEW AND 
CHARACTER STATEMENT 
CONSULTATION DOCUMENTS 

The Development Control Panel has 
welcomed the publication of the 
latest Boundary Review and 
Character Statement documents in 
relation to Somersham 
Conservation Area.  Having been 
reminded of the importance of both 
documents in protecting and 
enhancing the village, the Panel has 
endorsed the content of the 
documents and recommended that 
both be adopted as Council Policy. 

DESIGN BRIEF – FORMER 
HEALTH AUTHORITY OFFICES, 
PRIMROSE LANE, HUNTINGDON 

The Development Control Panel has 
considered early responses 
received during consultation on the 
Design Brief for the former health 
authority  offices, south of Primrose 
Lane, Huntingdon.  Although these 
reveal a preference to retain at least 
one of the existing buildings, namely 
the Primrose Centre, the Panel 
wishe to retain some flexibility and 
indicated a willingness to consider a 
high quality scheme that might 
involve its demolition. 

DEVELOPMENT APPLICATIONS 

Of the thirteen applications 
considered in May, the 
Development Control Panel has 
recommended the Council to 
support a proposal to develop a new 
college campus and sports facilities 

454



DDD eee ccc iii sss iii ooo nnn DDD iii ggg eee sss ttt Edition 84

Further information can be obtained from the Democratic Services Section  (01480) 388007

page 3 

for the Huntingdonshire Regional 
College on a site adjacent to the 
Cambridgeshire Constabulary HQ 
on Hinchingbrooke Park road, 
Huntingdon.  Should this proposal 
be supported, the application will be 
referred to Go East for approval as 
a departure from the current Local 
Plan.

ENFORCEMENT ACTION 

The Development Control Panel has 
endorsed a proposal to take 
enforcement action to discontinue 
the operation of a woodshaving line 
at Sundown Straw Ltd, Station 
Road, Tilbrook until steps are taken 
by the owner to implement an 
approved consent for safe access 
arrangement to the site.  The owner 
has been given six months to 
comply with the enforcement notice. 

DEVELOPMENT CONTROL: 
PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT 

The Development Control Panel 
have welcomed a report which 
suggests that the Development 
Control Section has met all national 
performance targets for the 
determination of major, minor and 
other applications in the period 1st

January – 31st March 2008. 

455



456

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	1 MINUTES
	3 LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 2000: FORWARD PLAN
	4 LOCAL DEVELOPMENT FRAMEWORK: THE CORE STRATEGY SUBMISSION DOCUMENT
	Core Strategy - Volume 1
	Core Strategy - Volume 2

	5 CYCLING
	6 PARKING FOR HEAVY GOODS VEHICLES
	hgvappendixA

	7 MONITORING OF SECTION 106 AGREEMENTS (PLANNING OBLIGATIONS)
	106Appendix A
	106AppendixB
	106AppendixC

	8 PERFORMANCE MONITORING
	9 WORKPLAN STUDIES
	HGV working group
	Section 106 working group
	parish charter working group

	10 OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY PANEL (SERVICE SUPPORT)
	11 SCRUTINY
	Edition 84 v2


